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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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Corporate Information 2 &K continued #)
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @ 57 i@ &R D47

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) continued to focus on conducting
money lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group's loan balance decreased from approximately HK$96.59 million as
at 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$12.29 million as at 31 December
2024.

The post-COVID recovery in Hong Kong proved to be short-lived. Both our
proprietary data and public economic indicators pointed to a deteriorating
economic environment. As a result, our outlook on the local economy turned
negative, and the Company took a more cautious approach on granting new
loans. This more conservative lending strategy led to a decrease in interest
income during the 2023 and 2024 fiscal years.

Although the abovementioned factors and the global economic recession did
cause substantial adverse impact on the Group's business and profitability,
based on the management'’s experience, the Company is confident that
Hong Kong and our Group will be able to survive and get through the global
economic recession and proceed to the economic recovery stage in near future.

The Company has formulated a business plan to improve the business
performance to enable the Company to continue to operate its money lending
business going forward. In 2025, after consideration of factors including rent,
overhead cost, difficulty of recruiting new staff and the market situation of the
money lending business, the Company targets to focus on identifying good
quality individual customers on personal loans. More stringent criteria will be
imposed upon customer selection to control the risk of default. Major effort of
the Company will be spent on chasing loan repayment by the Credit Control
Department and debt collection agencies to collect outstanding repayment in
Hong Kong and the PRC in the first half of 2025.

After considering the nature of the money lending business which has no
minimum capital requirement, the size of the Company and the Group's bank
and cash balances of approximately HK$2.43 million as at 31 December 2024,
it was considered that the Company would have adequate funds to maintain
its operations under the prevailing economic environment. At the same time,
the Group has endeavoured to control its expenses by taking various measures
in budget control.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

EBEEOERRE

HE-_Z-_=F+-"A=+—BItEE ARQ7A
LERBAR (FEA HFEE ) BEZ TNEE
MEXBE mMEF (BREEAA BERIIMERER
T)RHEBERAREERER -AEENEREH
H-_T_=%F+=H=+—H%96,590,000/% 7T
WMALE—ZT-ME+ = A =+—H#12,290,000
T

ERARBENERERREN - RMANFEE BB
AELEEEHENMOERBEELESL Bt &K
MEAMEENELSEAEBH AAEERTE
FERNTEZENEE EEEKRTHERR
BEH _T_=M_T_MHFHIEWARD -

BALMAZRREREFAREREHAEEET
RENMENERERTNZE EREEEEN
B ARABEELEBRAKEENERBEIR
BERNAE ETANGIENERRER-

AABBIET —BEBAENRNEXHTRE &£
RARBEEBEAFELE R-T_0F K&
TR EEER EREME I HEMRER
MEXEEDSRAAEEZRE AAREEETFE
BEREEAATEPERBAAER -ERETP
TS B E BARIRAE - ARG SRR o 1
ZORFEEFF ARANEEERBIIRES
BURARIZA E N BWER A D E B M G 8
REEER-

KEBERBEBEBHMEE (BEKFEREREZNR) AR
RAIABERARER T _NF+_A=+—HH
$R1T7 M & 88 492,430,0008 LR - RAAR R A

EHNEERET BEARATESHRRZE-R
B AERETEBRNEBEE RIS BOE
3 -



Management Discussion and Analysis &8 & 59 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders and
enhance its position in the competitive industry, the Group will continue to
strive for maintaining revenue and credit quality on the basis of its experience
in money lending business. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor its
capital base from time to time to ensure adequate funding is maintained
through various means for capturing different potential opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group’'s revenue for the year under review was derived from interest
received from the provision of various types of loan products to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue generated was
approximately HK$1.83 million, representing a decrease of approximately
71.18% from the revenue of approximately HK$6.35 million recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in accrued
interest from credit-impaired loans receivables during the year under review.
The Company will continue to monitor the credit risk of the loans receivables
from time to time and modify its credit assessments and control measures

when necessary.

XBRE

RERK  BRHEEEBERRREBERAMCRIRITEE
LB R HRITENA  AEESREENRERE
BOER BEZI NG HEREREEER - HILR
B ARESITRETEREEAREN BRARE
TABREFABNES  WEETREBEKE -

B 75 [0 B
W zs

AEERDEFEANKEREMERPREHS
BERE MM REE FE

HE-_ZE-_NF+-_F=1+—HIFE AHEEH
%5 491,830,0008 0 BREBEE T -_=F+=_A
=+ — B I FE 815 25 496,350,000/8 TR 4 4
71.18%

WD TERHNEBEFELREERENE
W B R e R ALBUR D AT B 0 AN B S AR AR T BE
RERERNEERR mEFZESEREENMG
Ko BE R it o

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 59 5% & 2D M (continued )

Revenue breakdown

Wir 25 BA 4

2024
—E-MFE

HK$'000
FHET

Unsecured loans MIRHER
Personal loans BAABR
Corporate loans PEENR
Foreign domestic workers loans IMERERIER
Sub-total et
Secured loans HREER
First property mortgage loans BRMERBER
Subordinated property mortgage loans EERMEIRIBER
Other secured loans Hih B EEER
Sub-total N
Total st
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

NET INTEREST MARGIN

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 3.74% for the year
ended 31 December 2024 in respect of its money lending business.

The above net interest margin represented the ratio of net interest income
to the average balance of gross loans receivables as at the end of the year
under review after deducting certain amount of past due loans receivables
which were matured or impaired during the year under review. The net interest
margin calculated on the same basis for the corresponding period last year was
approximately 12.00%.

In respect of unsecured loans, the net interest margin decreased from
approximately 13.78% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
5.90% for the year ended 31 December 2024. Meanwhile, net interest margin
in respect of secured loans decreased from approximately 8.73% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 0.31% for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Net interest margin
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Management Discussion and Analysis 255

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN AND LOSS

The Group's other income recorded an increase from approximately HK$0.03
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$3.91
million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Group's other income
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was mainly attributable to bad debts

recovery.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other gain of approximately HK$0.87
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to other loss of
approximately HK$4.53 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of other income and other gain and loss are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year under review mainly
comprised employment expenses and depreciation charges. Employment
expenses included directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and allowances,
bonuses, pension scheme contributions and insurance premium for employees,
etc. Administrative expenses included repair and maintenance and general
insurance premiums etc. Occupancy costs included management fees,

government rent and rates as well as utilities expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &8 & 59 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s administrative expenses
decreased and recorded at approximately HK$4.85 million as compared
to approximately HK$10.12 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in employment expenses and
depreciation charges for the year under review.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES

The Group's impairment loss mainly relates to expected credit loss (“ECL")
allowance for loans and interests receivables. Generally speaking, ECL
assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate. The ECL on loans and interests receivables are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a reversal of
impairment loss on loans receivables of approximately HK$7.03 million as
compared to impairment loss on loans receivables approximately HK$137.07
million for the corresponding period in 2023. The decrease in impairment loss
on loans receivables was principally due to a decrease in loss on derecognition
of loans receivables.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on interests receivables of approximately HK$90.95 million as compared to
HK$2.16 million for the corresponding period in 2023.

HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=Z+—HBLLtFE A&
B & 7 B RS2 R A I 8% 15 £94,850,0000% T M
BE_Z_=F+-A=+—BLFENHA
10,120,000 - W EZH R EEFEMEE
M RITEERRDR-

PN B R R A SR E R 1R

AEEMREBEIZREBEERLANEELE
EFE(RAGEEERBERM —KM 5
EREEBRFGEDREASBEREEEESRL
BET ARBEFABER R  BBLEMRIIA
KR B HIE S A AROR K R AR TR B9 RF £
(BHRESREGBE (WER) IIFLAZE -ERE
REMENEREEERNHEEERERNE
BARITEBIFT R RS A EFEE 5 HENE
IR EIT R BRI -

HE-_ZT-_WE+-_A=+—BLFE KX&EH
$% 15 FE e B B (B A5 18 8 21 497,030,000 7T
M- =FRHBAAUESEREZTREEEY
137,070,000 Lo EW ERURBEEEBRISETER
MR L ERERE RN EIRRD -

HE-_Z_WNF+_A=+—HIFE ~&£H
B 15 FE Y2 FI| B R 1B 5 48 990,950,000 T 0 1 —
== = FRHARIE%152,160,0007 7T

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

The Group performs collective assessment on impairment allowance for the
loans and interests receivables at least on a quarterly basis by dividing its loans
and interests receivables into different groups according to the loan types,
with each loan type sharing similar credit risk characteristics, and calculates
the ECL for each loan type. The measurement of impairment allowance for
collective assessment is mainly based on the amount of loans and interests
receivables of each loan type at a point of time and will take into account the
probability of default (which may be affected by the duration of delinquency
and is calculated by using the adjusted transition rate as the key input from
the Markov Chain Model) and loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default which is estimated with reference to the loans and
interests receivables’ historical bad debt recovery rate and cash flows from the
realisation of its collateral, if any) pertaining to that particular loan type, which
are derived from the assessment made by the external professional valuer as
at the latest year-end date based on the historical repayment performance of
different loan types and adjusted by forward-looking information such as the
economic and financial environment and expected unemployment rate, etc.

The Group also performs monthly individual assessment on impairment
allowance for the loans and interests receivables. For individual assessment,
the amount of impairment allowance on loans and interests receivables will be
considered on a case-by-case basis by way of discounted cash flow, taking into
account, among other factors, the expected date of recovery and the fair value
of the collateral (if any).

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment of
financial assets (including loans and interests receivables) and the financial risk
management policies in respect of loans and interests receivables, please refer
to section E of note 4 and section C of note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Credit risk assessments were performed by the Group before each loan was
advanced. Identity checks, financial background checks and, where applicable,
relevant public searches (such as litigation search, company search and
land search) were conducted on the borrowers and, where applicable, the
guarantor and/or the underlying companies whose shares were charged to
the Group as security. In credit assessment, the Group will normally take into
account factors including, but not limited to personal financial background
and repayment ability of the borrowers, internal and external credit checking
results, the borrowers’ repayment records in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral and the availability of
any guarantee. During the year under review, the Group was satisfied with the
credit worthiness and the repayment ability of the borrowers after conducting

the credit risk assessment.

The Group also adopted a “two eyes” process requiring credit approval at
successively higher levels or by the credit committee of the board of Directors
("Board”) depending on, among other things, the size and nature of the

proposed transactions.

Subsequent to the drawdown of loans, to ensure that loans repayments are
punctual and past due accounts are handled efficiently, the Group actively
reviews and monitors the loan repayment status under the supervision of the

management on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the Group has closely monitored the loans and
interests receivables for the purpose of assessing credit risk and has put more
effort in the collection procedures of the loans and interests receivables, such
as making phone calls and sending reminders to the relevant customers from
time to time. The Group may also negotiate with customers on the repayment
arrangements on a case-by-case basis according to the circumstances of the
customers. Legal actions may be brought against the relevant customers
depending on the actual circumstances on a case-by-case basis.
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Impairment loss on loans receivables

I 5 30 iR B 5 18
2024 2023
—E-E ====
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
ECL on individual assessment BYHEMTEREEER 61,174 130,223
ECL on collective assessment SRIHENEHEEESE (68,208) 6,846
Total st (7,034) 137,069
Details of the ECL policy and measurement, and the movement of provision for ﬁEﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%?ﬁﬁﬁ&EJFEE’JE?’F AR EWRE

impairment and write-offs of loans receivables are disclosed in note 28(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group's other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2024
mainly comprised legal and professional fees and other general expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$5.29 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2024 decreased to approximately HK$3.72 million, which was mainly owed
to the decrease in service fees of debt recovery agencies and other general
expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2024 mainly
comprised interest on lease liabilities and interest on bond payable. Finance
costs decreased and recorded at approximately HK$0.09 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024, as compared to approximately HK$0.15 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Finance costs

Hfth 4 &
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b — A% B SR A FTER o
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HMHER

2024

—F-@mE

HK$'000

TH#IT
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEHNFE 8 110
Interest on bond payable EREHFHFE 80 38
Total “mst 88 148

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year under review, the Group recorded a decrease in the consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$85.99 million
as compared to the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$152.95 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
which was principally due to significant decrease in impairment on loss loans
and interests receivables for the year under review as disclosed in notes 19 and
28(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

FREE

BREE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLEFEELR
AI%EE A4S B H49152,950,000/8 7T 72 [
BEE AEESGARARBAREEAER
B > #)85,990,000/8 7T WX E RN MEFE
ERERRFNBREBRBEZRD AR (NEE
MK 19 R M E28(0)F R P PIRE) -



Management Discussion and Analysis &

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year under review, the Group financed its operations by cash flow from
operating activities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$2.43 million (2023: approximately HK$3.74 million), all of
which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no minimum capital
requirement for the Group's principal money lending business. The Board
considers that the cash level of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was

adequate for operation in terms of fund utilisation.

There was no bank borrowing as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$15.45 million (2023: approximately HK$97.46 million) and
the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
approximately 13.28 times (2023: approximately 50.55 times). The decrease in
the current ratio was mainly attributable to a decrease in loans and interests
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group adopted a treasury policy with the aims to utilise the surplus and/or
idle funds of the Group and to achieve capital appreciation in the long-term.
Under the treasury policy, the Group may invest in diversified investment
products which the Board thinks fit, including but not limited to government
bonds, debt instruments and listed equity securities on the Stock Exchange.

Where appropriate, the Group may apply for loans and/or credit facilities from
independent third parties and banks and may conduct fund raising activities by
issuing equity shares and/or loan notes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there had been no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group. The Group had no specific future plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any significant investments
exceeding 5% of the total asset value of the Group.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed a total of 11 full-time staff
(2023: 12 staff). The total remuneration of employees (including directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$4.29 million (2023: approximately HK$6.90 million). The Group's
remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance,
qualifications and experience of individual employees and with reference to the
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration packages of the employees of
the Group comprise monthly fixed salaries and discretionary year-end bonus
which may be given to employees based on their individual performance as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

The Group adopted a staff training and development policy with the aims
to improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high
quality staff training forms the foundation of the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information in relation to
money lending, anti-money laundering (“AML") and anti-corruption with
reference to the fast-changing market environment, the business objectives of

the Group and the relevant requirements of the regulatory bodies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no pledged assets.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being total liabilities less bank and
cash balances) divided by the sum of the adjusted capital (being the share
capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and other reserves) and net debt.

The Group recorded a net cash of approximately HK$2.43 million as at
31 December 2024 (2023: a net cash of approximately HK$3.74 million).
Therefore, the Group has a zero gearing ratio as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
zero gearing ratio).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in the money
lending business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and the cost of business
was principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to the risk
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal. Hence, no
financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year ended 31

December 2024.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
HKS$Nil).

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended since 24 November
2017 pursuant to the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC”) made under Section 8(1) of the Securities and Futures
(Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the Laws of Hong Kong) and will
remain suspended until further notice.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Announcements were made by the Company on 1 August 2018, 1 November
2018, 1 February 2019, 2 May 2019, 1 August 2019, 1 November 2019, 31
January 2020, 29 April 2020, 31 July 2020, 30 October 2020, 1 February
2021, 30 April 2021, 30 July 2021, 29 October 2021, 28 January 2022, 28
April 2022, 28 July 2022, 28 October 2022, 27 January 2023, 27 April 2023,
27 July 2023, 25 October 2023, 26 January 2024, 29 April 2024, 30 July 2024,
2 October 2024, 31 October 2024 and 28 January 2025 pursuant to Rule
17.26A of the GEM Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2019,
the Stock Exchange has withheld exercising its right to delist the Company
although trading in its shares remained suspended on 31 July 2019. As such,
trading in the shares of the Company will continue to be suspended until
further notice.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2025,
the Company has continued its effort in communicating with and addressing
the concern of the SFC with a view to achieving a resumption of trading of
the Shares (the “Resumption Application”) as soon as possible. However,
SFC informed the Company recently that they will not continue the without
prejudice discussion under the previously agreed proposed resumption
conditions. The Company is seeking legal advice from its legal advisers and
will use its endeavor to re-open the without prejudice discussion with SFC
as soon as practicable. The Company’s trade resumption application is still
pending as at the date of this announcement and the Company is not in a
position to provide a concrete Resumption Application timeframe at this stage.
Nevertheless, the Company and its legal representatives will closely follow-up
and liaise with the relevant regulators to facilitate the Resumption Application.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

f@j: DjDH:H &73 1(

(continued #&)
Zl»‘"ﬁE*E?J%GEMJ:ﬁ?%EE'J%W26Afl’z'ﬁ’5:515
—AiAH—E *—A¢+ A—HB =%
—hF=ZA—H8" —NWFRAZAH: :2 it
FNA—H- ﬂ¢+ A—HB -ZZ=ZTF
*H:+*E~:%fE¢EH +hBA-Z2=
THE+A=+—H —ZE-_THE+A=+H =F
——f¥-A—-B ZZE-—FmWA=+H ==
——F+A=+B-ZE-—F+A-+HB =
B —F-A-+N B 2B -FWA=-+N
H - —FtA=Z+N\H - ZZT==F+A
“+tNB ZZEZ=F—A=+tH ZTZ=F
MA-++H =%+ -++tH - -Z
Z=FTAZ+RBE - ZEWFIOAZ -HLEI

—ENF+tA=+H-ZTZWMF+A=ZAH-
Z_WMETA 7+—E&_§_£¢—ﬁ_+/\
H —E-WNFE—A=-+ X XBHEQE-

BUMARRBHA T -AFRAA-TOAZ
NRERMBE BEARABROR -_ZE-NAFLH
=+ —RPAEEEE BBIARETEES
AR BIBRREAORER] o Bk AR B B4 EE =
BEE BEESTEARL-

MMARABBMA-T_HAF—A=Z+N\BHR
EMBRE - AQREBS N REEGEBNEE
HE#H UKERREBRNDEE ([1ERBE]) -
A BESLHBARAF A TSEELR
Fﬁiﬁ’]%“fﬁﬁiﬂ HEEETEBRERENNR-
ARIEREZRBHASRERER LHESN
%’I%Eﬁﬁ%?i?&ﬂi%ﬂ%\ Mam - BEARE
ABMERFFERFDHFHEARARF
fﬁﬁ Eﬁﬁ/ﬁ?ﬂ%{fﬂﬂﬁg{ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BmEWU
ARAREEEREAGEZ Y REN EBHEE
BB A AR E IR 5S -



corporate Governance Report T EBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report (“CG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2024. This CG Report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards of corporate governance. The Board believes that sound
and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Group and for safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 to the GEM Listing Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective
Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2024, save for the code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of the CG Code as
detailed below, the Company had complied with all the code provisions set out
in the CG Code and no other deviation from the CG Code during the year had
been noted by the Company.

Details of the deviations from code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of
the CG Code are set out under the paragraphs headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO")", "Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development Programme” and “Communications With Shareholders and
Investors and Investor Relations” in this CG Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024. No incident of non-compliance
during the year was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report 1R E B continued #)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long-term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board also communicates with the shareholders of the Company
and regulatory bodies and makes recommendation to the shareholders on final
dividend and approves the declaration of any interim dividend.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development of
the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

As of the date of this CG report, the Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1)
and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that the Board includes at least
three independent non-executive Directors, which represents at least one-
third of the Board and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors” from pages 41 to 42 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), management staff and the compliance
officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company is in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the
expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and management staff of the Company who regularly review the
financial results and performance of the Group and make financial and
operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and plans approved
by the Board.

There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between

members of the Board and between the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEO").
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Corporate Governance Report 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised two executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lai Szu Yu and Mr. Tang Shek Chung, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wong
Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung all
have appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the

changes to the composition of the Board were as follows:

- Ms. Ho Yuen May May resigned as an executive Director and a member
of the credit committee of the Company with effect from 18 March
2025;

- Mr. Tang Shek Chung was appointed as an executive Director and a
member of credit committee of the Company with effect from 18 March
2025; and

- Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung resigned as an executive Director and the chairman
of credit committee of the Company with effect from 27 March 2025.

ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the shareholders
in general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of no more than three years. The Company has also issued
a letter of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors
for a term of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Corporate Governance Report 1R E B continued #)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual and code provisions C.2.2 to C.2.9 set out the main
responsibilities of the chairman. As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2020, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, a former executive
Director and Chairman of the Board, passed away on 9 March 2020. Since then
and up to the date of this report, the position of the Chairman has remained
vacant. Compliance with code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 was therefore not
possible during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Notwithstanding the absence of a Chairman, the Board, which comprises
experienced Directors who meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operation of the Group, has been able to continue performing its
functions effectively and efficiently. In view of the simple structure of the
Company, significant decisions are made by the Board as a whole while
the daily operation and management are monitored by the Chief Executive
Officer. Before each Board meeting, all Directors receive adequate information
and relevant documents in a timely manner and are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings. All Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have made different contributions to the issues
discussed at the Board meetings and the Board was able to make and
implement decisions promptly in response to the changing environment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Ms. Ho Yuen May May acted as
the CEO. The CEO is responsible for overseeing the Company's day-to-day
management and operations as well as to implement objectives, strategies and
policies approved and delegated by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As at the date of this CG Report, the Company had three independent non-

executive Directors and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with

the Company for a term of two years.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held two times a year on a semi-
annual basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance. For
other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of significant issues in
relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given in a reasonable time

in advance.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda and
the accompanying Board papers at least three days in advance or such other
period as agreed in order to allow the Directors to include any other matters
in the agenda that are required to be discussed or resolved at the meeting. To
enable the Directors to make informed decisions, adequate and appropriate
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are also sent to all
Directors in a timely manner. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any director
who or whose close associates (or associates for connected transactions) have
a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any other proposal to
be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting on the relevant

resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comments
within reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is made
available to them for their review and signing.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and annual REZEZE T -_NF+_A=Z+—HILFE &
general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the ZHEEESSHLRIBFASHREKKTIMN

following table: i

Attended/number of meeting held

HERY,EHEBTRE
Board Annual general
meeting meeting
ExgaE; BREBEEXE
Name of Directors
EEns
Executive Directors
BITES
Ms. Ho Yuen May May (CEQ) (resigned on 18 March 2025) 5/5 17
gzt (7TEAS) (R_Z_REF=AT+N\B&ITE)
Ms. Lai Szu Yu 5/5 Il
BEFZ L
Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung (resigned on 27 March 2025) 5/5 Il
BREBgEE ( RZZE-AF=A=-T+HHET)
Ms. Xie Si (resigned on 3 July 2024) 2/5 17
WpLt (RZZE-MFELA=BHE)
Mr. Tang Shek Chung (appointed on 18 March 2025) —/- —/-
BHiHREE (R_ZE-_RF=A+/\BEZEE)
Independent non-executive Directors
BIAKHITES
Dr. Fung Kam Man 5/5 11
KHE X E L
Mr. Li Long (resigned on 23 September 2024) 5/5 11
FRAE (RZT-_MOFARZT=HEE)
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (resigned on 23 September 2024) 5/5 171
HHEEE (RZE-MOF A +=HEIE)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 5/5 11
mRESRL
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (appointed on 2 February 2024) 5/5 11

minFRE (R-E-_ME_A-HEZRE)
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DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment. They also receive policies and procedures of the Company as
well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under GEM
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, during the year ended 31 December 2024, all the
Directors had participated in continuous professional development by attending
training courses provided by professional firms or institutions, or reading
materials provided by the Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during the year
under review.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company recognizes the importance of the Board independence to
corporate governance. In particular, in order to ensure the strong independence
of the Board and make ensure that the Board can obtain independent views
and opinions, the following mechanisms are required: 1) in assessing the
qualification of potential candidates to become independent Directors, the
nomination committee and the Board will consider, among others, whether
the candidates are able to dedicate sufficient time to fulfill their duties as
independent Directors and the candidates’ backgrounds and qualifications, in
order to assess whether such candidates are able to bring an independent view
to the Board; and 2) the nomination committee is authorized to assess the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors on an annual basis
with reference to the independence criteria set out in the Listing Rules so as to
ensure that they can continue to exercise independent judgment.

All Directors have full and timely access to all information of the Company and
to the advice and services of the company secretary and senior management of
the Company. Directors are generally entitled to seek independent professional
advice on the discharge of their duties to the Company in appropriate
circumstances upon request and at our Company's expense.

At the same time, the Company has formulated internal policies (including
but not limited to the Bye-laws, the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee, the audit committee and the nomination committee) to ensure
that the Board is provided with independent views and opinions. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the above mechanism and is of the view that the above
mechanism is able to ensure that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions.

-
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

i
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The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of B/ZZEEWR T ——FRV HEZEBEHE
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the FADEEATE -RAREBH BEEES
audit committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely =&Y 3FMITE MR A& FhE (BRE
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Fung Kam Man EB&* /&) S X BT hEM@E LA -
and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.
The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December HZE_Z_NME+_A=Z+—HILFE B&Z%
2024. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance records B @ AMMAEH - FRLZETHKRLEHKER
of each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended #HEZ—ZZT_=F+_A=+—HIEFERITHE
31 December 2024 are set out below: REEggHNEELHRINT
Attended/number of
meeting held
BXRE
BREBTRE
Name of committee members
EEERERAZ
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (chairman of the audit committee)
— appointed as the chairman of the audit committee on 2 February 2024 2/2
\Ein Akt (BEELZEEFE) R_Z_NEF_A_HBEZAREREESE
Dr. Fung Kam Man 2/2
58X+
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (ceased to be the member of the audit committee on 23 September 2024) 2/2
FEGLEEE (RZZBE-_MFAA-T=BRIEZEEZEZEEEE)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 2/2
The primary function of the audit committee is to monitor the integrity of the BEREZEENTENEAERARTHHRE

Company'’s financial statements, financial reports and accounts and to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group. It also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors and reviews the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems (“RM & IC Systems”) on a regular
basis.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, the risk management ("RM”) & internal control (“IC") systems and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function. It has discussed with
the management on the RM & IC systems to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. The audit committee has also
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the external
auditors after reviewing the scope of work offered, taking into account their

remuneration and terms of engagement.

During the year under review, the Board did not take a different view from the
audit committee on the appointment of external auditors.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024
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As of the date of this CG report, the Company has complied with Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the audit committee comprises
non-executive Directors only, with a minimum of three members, at least one of
whom is an independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director
and the majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
nomination committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee), Dr. Fung
Kam Man and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.

The nomination committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024. The composition of the nomination committee and the
attendance records of each member at the nomination committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

E\% (continued #&)

RALZEEAMETE B AAFEETGEM
ETRAIFES 28 MERZEERAERNTE
= BRRI=ZERE HPRI-ZREREER
MBEXER HERBEEN G HAENMBEE
E§EM%i#ﬂﬁ§$vM&%$§§§%

BYFRATEREREEIF BHBLHKNERR
BUFRITES-

REEZEE

REEEEN _T——FRL HEEAREHE
NELEXBEARTR RAREAH REEZEEA

—RBUNTES NEREALE (REZES
IE) BBXELRERFEEAK-

BE-T_NFT A=+ —-HIEFE REZ
BEERTMAEE - REZEGEMAEKER
BE_T-_WNFF+_A=1+—-HLFERTHIER
REEGEANHECERINNAT:

Attended/number of
meeting held

BRe

EHETARE
Name of committee members
EEENENRE
Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee) 2/2
BREXE (BEZFEE8F/E)
Dr. Fung Kam Man 2/2
KHER X E L
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (ceased to be a member of the nomination committee on 23 September 2024) 2/2

EREE (RZE_NFNA T =ZHRLZAREEEGEZE)

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the nomination committee on 2 February 2024 2/2

BN RE-R - E_ME_A_HEZERRELEEZESZXE

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessment of
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

REZEENIZRESBRITEETETNRE A
BEEABRARREEZENEGBEAR EENE
MEERBE EFEEE R BBILIEANT
EEMNBUIMAEESREESE -

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH
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All appointments of Directors will ultimately be based on merit while taking
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Candidate can be nominated by any Director for the
nomination committee’s consideration. Nomination committee will evaluate
the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as set out
in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the nomination
committee will then make appropriate recommendations to the Board for
approval. Such criteria including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
culture and educational background, skills, professional experience, character
and integrity, knowledge, length of service and other factors that the Company

deems relevant.

The nomination committee will review the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on a regular basis, discuss any
revision that may be required and recommends any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.

Since Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, the former Chairman, passed away on 9 March
2020, the nomination committee has been paying effort in identifying
candidates suitably qualified to fill the vacancy. As at the date of this CG
Report, the position of Chairman remained vacant. Despite such vacancy, the
nomination committee believes that with the support of experienced and
high-calibre individuals including but not limited to the executive Directors,
the balance of power and authority has been adequately maintained by the
operation of the Board as a whole.

The nomination committee considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
was maintained on the Board, which comprised members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. In addition, the nomination
committee also assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors as well as discussed on and reviewed the retirement and re-election

of Directors and other relevant issues.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has the Board Diversity Policy which sets out it approach to
achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board's composition, Board Diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has a nomination policy which sets out the procedures and
criteria for the selection, appointment and reappointment of the Directors.
In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the nomination
committee shall consider the candidates’ character and integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, independence, diversity on
the Board, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and such other criteria that are appropriate to the business of the

Company.
Nomination Process

The nomination committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board
has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required. The
nomination committee utilizes various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and professional search firms. All director candidates, including incumbents
and candidates nominated by shareholders are evaluated by the nomination
committee based upon the director qualifications. While director candidates
will be evaluated on the same criteria through review of resume, personal
interview and performance of background checks. The nomination committee
retains the discretion to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which
may vary based on the composition, skill sets, age, gender and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate for the purpose
of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
remuneration committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee),
Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.
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The remuneration committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 HE_-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—HBILEE FTHZE
December 2024. The composition of the remuneration committee and the E&@RITMAEH -FMEZESHKLEKER
attendance records of each member at the remuneration committee meetings #HE_-_Z_MF+_F=+—H JJ:@V%’&TTE’J#J?
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below: MZEegd ML FERaERIMAT:
Attended/number of
meeting held
BRE
EBRETRY
Name of committee members
EEERERE
Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee) 2/2
B EL (FHNEE & F/E)
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (ceased to be a member of the remuneration committee on 23 September 2024) 2/2
EHEE(RZZHFAAT=AKRLEZATNEESZLE)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 2/2
mRERSE
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the remuneration committee on 2 February 2024 2/2
B AEE-R_Z-_MNF-_A_HEBZERFTMEESELE
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are, among others, to make HMZESWMEEHEL (HFRE)H2EES
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the remuneration RES&AEEEFMOBERER AEEERE

of all Directors and senior management and to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and ensure
none of the Directors or any of their associates will determine his/her own
remuneration and to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The remuneration committee adopted the approach under code provision
E.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code and is authorised to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages as well as the terms of the service
contracts of the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
In addition, during the year under review, it has reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure and assessed the performance of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no senior management

other than the Directors.
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CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of better
management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of the
credit committee are responsible for, among other things, enacting marketing
strategy and issuing lending guidelines from time to time in line with the
market change, approving and overseeing the Group’s credit policy, monitoring
the performance of credit officers and the quality of the loans and providing
periodical reports to the Board for review. As at the date of this report, the
credit committee comprised two executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Shek
Chung and Ms. Lai Szu Yu.

The credit committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 December
2024. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance records of
each member at the credit committee meeting held during the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out below:

-

E\% (continued #&)

EE%8¢
ARAER-_ZZELFRIGEEZTE S NUEH
iﬂ%ﬁﬁ/ﬁ%,\ﬂﬂ‘*&%,\ﬁ{‘ﬂéié BeXE
BE (AP EE)RIET SN HIE ™5 HEE
REREMETES #HAEREBAEENEE
R Dﬁ%ME.%fIEE’Ui'%IE&%?KE%'jfiﬁﬂlﬂ
EEgRIMESAHBH -RARESEH FEZ
EgmmapTESMAN EHRLERER
Sikegmuly

RE-F-MF+-A=+-BLFE FEE
BEBGT - NEH-EEEARMNRENE
WRE-F-MF+- A=+ BILFERTH
FEEARERHHERERIMT

Attended/number of
meeting held

BRE
BRETRY
Name of committee members
EEEHENE
Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung (chairman of the credit committee) (resigned on 27 March 2025) 11
RERSE (FEZEEFFE) (RZERAF=A=-++tHEE)
Ms. Ho Yuen May May (resigned on 18 March 2025) 11
Mzt (RZE_RAF=A+/\BET)
Ms. Lai Szu Yu 11
BRI+
Mr. Tang Shek Chung (appointed on 18 March 2025) —/-
HipILtE ( RZTAF =R+t N\BHEZE)
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE BHREES
The compliance committee was established in 2010 to serve the corporate AMEZEER _ZT—ZERY - BEBAQRFAMHL
governance function of the Company with the aim to ensure the compliance % &8 868 ‘E BRASEEETATREANAK
of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group £ B FEAN - B BI KA R - L HE 2 HIE AN
from time to time, in particular, the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter (%.5/%/221§|J%163$) ([MBEANES])  GEMLET

163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“MLO"), the GEM Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"). The major duties of the compliance committee include, to develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors and
to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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As at the date of this report, the compliance committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Ms. Lai Szu Yu, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance
committee), Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.

The compliance committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024. The composition of the compliance committee and the
attendance records of each member at the compliance committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

RARER AHZESHEBHRTEE AR
Bt ROMZBLIENITES  BDSRE L
(ARZESXR) BERFLERERFLLEA
B o

BHE_Z_MEF+_A=+—RHBIEFE 8%
BERTMACE -GHRZEQENREXNER
HE-_T-_NMF+_A=1+—HLEFERTHE
REEggRMLFERHRIAT

Attended/number of
meeting held

R

EHRETARE
Name of committee members
EEENEKRE
Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance committee) 2/2
B EL (EHEEEF/E)
Ms. Lai Szu Yu 2/2
BRIzt
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (ceased to be a member of the compliance committee on 23 September 2024) 2/2
FEESE (RZE_OFAAT=ZHRILZAEHEEGEZE)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 2/2
HEELL
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung — appointed as a member of the compliance committee on 2 February 2024 2/2
B AEE-R_ZE-_NF_A_HABZEIREHEZESEE

The compliance committee regularly reviews matters regarding the compliance
of the Group with the MLO, the GEM Listing Rules, the SFO and other relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has adopted
relevant compliance manuals which govern the Group's compliance matters in
relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant
regulations.
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During the year under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has recorded
the issues identified during the review and made several suggestions to the
Board and the management of the Company on issues particularly concerning
internal control, environmental, social and governance and corporate
governance. For instance, the compliance committee (i) reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
senior management and other employees in respect of compliance matters
(including AML training and anti-corruption training); (ii) formulated, reviewed,
and monitored the employees’ code of conduct and compliance manual to
synchronise with the latest applicable laws and regulations and the current
practices of the Group; (iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure of the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance in this CG Report; and (iv) reviewed and monitored the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Also, the Company’s internal control systems and the Company’s internal audit
function’s effectiveness are regularly reviewed by the compliance committee.
The Company has acted and would continue to act on the recommendations

of the compliance committee.

CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

The credit review committee was established in 2018 for the purpose of
enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. The major
duties of the credit review committee include: conduct periodic reviews on
different loan cases based on the credit review report and the past due loan
report prepared by the credit control department for the purpose of monitoring
credit risk. The credit review committee will give recommendations when
it deems fit. The credit review committee will also review the cases of the
approved loans to see whether such loans were approved in accordance with
the credit policy of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the credit review committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of
the credit review committee), Mr. Wong Kin Ning and Mr. Wong Shui Yeung.
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The credit review committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2024. The composition of the credit review committee and the
attendance record of each member at the credit review committee meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

HE-_T-_NE+-_A=+—BLEE F&E
BREBGRITT —AREZE - EEBRZESHEK
MEKERBEE-ZE-_NF+_A=+—HIF
EROTNEEERZESSEANEFELHERI T

T
Attended/number of
meeting held
HExE
EHRETRH
Name of committee members
FEEERERAZ
Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the credit review committee) 11
HRXEL (FEBEREEET/E)
Mr. Wang Zhiwei (ceased to be a member of the credit review committee on 23 September 2024) 0/0
FEEEE (RZT_OFANA T AR LEZAEEEBRZE®ZE)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning 11
mHRESSE
Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (appointed as a member of the credit review committee on 23 September 2024) 11

EmAkt (RZZ-_MFENA-_T=PREZERAEEBXZESER)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for
each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the Company's
financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 78 to 84 of the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong King Sum resigned as the Company Secretary on 3 July 2024. The
Company engages an external service provider, Mr. Man Yun Wah, as the
Company Secretary. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration
and management and a master’s degree in corporate governance. He is
currently an associate member of both The Chartered Governance Institute and
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. His primary contact person at
the Company is Mr. Tang Shek Chung, an executive Director of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings respectively to update his skills and
knowledge. He reports to the Board directly.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditors of the Company for the audit and non-audit services provided
amounted to HK$0.53 million and HK$Nil respectively. The non-audit services
represented the review of interim and quarterly results of the Group by the
auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the day-
to-day operation and business development of the Group while maintaining
risk at an optimal level.

SYSTEM FEATURES

The RM and IC Systems of the Company are designed to identify and monitor
risks from day-to-day operations and they are embodied by the Board through
the relevant board committees, the management, the departments and the
internal audit function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM and IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regard,
the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems
established and maintained by the management of the Company at least
annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM and IC Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM and
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and considered
these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system and the RM and IC Systems. It
also develops a regular platform to discuss the RM and IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
maintain effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The audit committee
considers the major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings. The audit committee also regularly
reviews the findings and opinions of the internal audit function and the
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems.

-
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Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal control
of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee has conducted
periodic reviews on issues including credit quality of various cases including cases
of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Reviews on current loan cases are also
conducted as a continuous monitoring on credit quality. Results and findings of

the review are submitted to the Board for further discussion.

The Management and Departments The management is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems.
The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for the
Group's policies and manuals on risk management and internal control. For
instance, the loans department of the Group, as the daily operation units, are
responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time to the
management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the disclosure policy and procedures to promote consistent disclosure
practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO. The policy
and procedure set out the mechanism of identifying the potential inside
information and escalating the matters to the Board to decide whether to
make relevant disclosure in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk Assessment and
Measurement

B AT A K wt &

Risk Identification

22 B 58k B

Risk Identification The loans department and the major subsidiaries of
the Group are required to report on material risks identified in the risk
management report (on department or subsidiary level) which is submitted to
the management periodically.

Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk assessment
and measurement involve the participation of management in assessing the
risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk. The management
reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that appropriate
controls and measures are in place or in progress. The management, through
consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes, compiles a risk management
report (on Company level) to the audit committee and the internal audit
function. Following review by the audit committee and the internal audit
function, the company risk management report would be submitted to the
Board.
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Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolve material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
report (on Company level) from time to time. Such measures vary according to
the type of risks or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company’s risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM and IC Systems in terms of risk control and mitigation. For instance,
the risk management policy is subject to regular reviews in order to respond
to any significant changes to the products, services or relevant laws and
regulations that might impact the risk exposure of the Company.

DIVERSITY

An appropriate balance of diversity was maintained on the Board, which
comprised members of both gender. All appointments of Directors will take
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board
to maintain gender diversity. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
workforce was comprised of approximately 63.6% male and approximately
36.4% female.

Currently, the Board consists of five members who have business strategy
expertise, accounting, auditing or financial expertise, professional
qualifications, or experience related to the industry where the Company
operates, one of whom is a female Director. The nomination committee has
reviewed the policy concerning the diversity of Board members and believes
that the Board has already had a diverse mix of gender, skills, knowledge
and experience. The Company will strive to achieve gender balance of the
Board through the following measures to be implemented by the nomination
committee in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy. The Company will
actively identify female individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members. To further ensure gender diversity of the Board in the long run, the
Group will take opportunities to increase the proportion of female members of
the Board, identify female individuals with a diverse range of skills, experience
and knowledge in different fields from time to time, and maintain a list of such
individuals who possess qualities to become the Board members, which will
be reviewed by the nomination committee periodically in order to develop a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board to promote gender diversity of the
Board.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group's
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing
relationship with the Company's potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a communication
platform with its shareholders and investors, where the Group's business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 1, 7/F, Yue Thai Commercial Building, 128
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk
for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
According to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. In the absence of the Chairman of
the Board since the decease of Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an executive Director,
Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung, was appointed as the chairman of the AGM held on 21
June 2024 and was available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee also endeavor to be available at the AGM to answer any questions
raised by the shareholders.

Given the above, it is believed that adequate shareholders’ communication
policy has been put in place to achieve effective communication during the

year ended 31 December 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no significant change in
the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

ERREREERBBEERRE
ZEHE

EEgfEGE FRARNREASEER KA
PREREREEFLRENRERE RNBE
HAFEEXBRENKBEOTHE - SIN ptEAR
ABAENRAREBERR ERFERENS -
BHEBRETRAESR-

AR BRI T #ub [www.fcfg.com.hk | 1F & B2 %
RERREEBBRNTA AR BERZBILERH
AEBNWEBBRREE UBEN CEEARE
RREMER - RRERKREENEEAENR  IRA]
HESTEEARAREBBENETZE EME (it
REBTHETI28RBREMERNETRIE) L
T I Eenquiry@firstcredit.com.hk ° N2 7 #5 & bk

HERERIRHMFREER -

EZgRA ARARRASRH-—EEERE
HERRAEZGQRER - RELEEATAUE
F22ETRIMGEX EERTRBEHERRBEX
G ARFTHMALARET EFTSIF —BEE
HTEERER AL EZERARAN TN
FRAZHT-BRTORRBFRGXRE IR
BREBFAE LOER[M -EREE] FWES
ELREZBENIFNAEARLFERRBEFK
& 0 F AR R AR A (] R

ERERER BEERE-_T_OF+=A
=t REFER BEEE N RREBBR N
BRBRER-

BHE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—BItEE AQFH
FERM R AR MAT EERKEE-o



Corporate Governance Report (%858

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interests are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation
in AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by
post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of general
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All registered
shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general meetings of
the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call for special
general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the said date.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is
intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights
as mentioned above to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communication with
Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND ANTI-
CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has formulated whistle blowing policy which allows all staff and
independent third parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors, to
report any possible improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in
matters of financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board
or the Audit Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and
complaints with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns fairly and
properly. Any person who is found to have victimized or retaliated against
those who have raised concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary
sanctions.

The Group has adopted anti-corruption policy on a zero-tolerance basis for
any form of corruption, including bribery and extortion, fraud and money
laundering, and promise to operate our business in an honest, ethical and
creditable manner. The policies are revised in due course and all Directors and

employees are reminded with its requirement from time to time.

Please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained
in this report for more details.
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Biographical Details of Directors EE < EE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Shek Chung, aged 49, joined the Company and was appointed as
an executive Director and the member of credit committee of the Company
on 18 March 2025. Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
accountancy from RMIT University, Australia. He has extensive experience and
knowledge in auditing, finance and accounting. He has served as a senior
auditor of Vision C.PA. Limited from April 1996 to April 2004, an accounting
manager of FTE Logistics International Limited from July 2004 to May 2005, an
accounting supervisor of Lee Kee Holdings Limited (a company listed on Main
Board of Stock Exchange, stock code: 0637) from May 2005 to April 2013.
He is currently a Finance and Operation Manager of Tyre Pacific (HK) Limited
(partnership of listed companies Tan Chong International Limited, (a company
listed on Main Board of Stock Exchange, stock code: 0693 and Stamford Tyres
Corporation Limited, a company listed in Singapore, stock code: S29) since
August 2013.

Ms. Lai Szu Yu, aged 36, joined the Company as an executive Director in
April 2019, and was appointed as the compliance officer of the Company in
December 2019. Ms. Lai graduated from the University of Southern California
in 2011 with a degree of Bachelor of Arts majoring in Economics. She has
different experience in financial accounting and education. She used to work
at a law firm in Hong Kong, overseeing and streamlining the firm’s operations.
She managed the administration and accounting departments.
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Biographical Details of Directors E=5 < & FE (continued #)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree of Master
of Science in Financial Management from the University of London and a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of Nottingham. Dr.
Fung has been certified as a Project Management Professional by the Project
Management Institute. He is a certified financial planner certified by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a certified financial planner of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial Planners. Dr. Fung has experience of
more than 30 years in the continuing education and vocational training field.
Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed higher education development and quality
assurance consultant.

Mr. Wong Kin Ning, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2021. Mr. Wong Kin Ning has over 23 years of
management experience in the electronic and mechanical engineering field.
Mr. Wong Kin Ning is currently holding a management position in a sizable
company in Hong Kong. He is mainly responsible for strategic planning, as well
as project and operation management.

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in February 2024. Mr. Wong Shui Yeung is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a certified public
accountant (practising) registered with the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council and holds a bachelor's degree in business administration from Hong
Kong Baptist University. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, corporate finance, corporate investment and development, and
company secretarial practice. He has served as an independent non-executive
director of Alset International Limited (SGX: 40V) since June 2017, the shares
of which are listed on the Catalist Board of Singapore Stock Exchange, a
member of the board of directors of Alset Inc. (NASDAQ: AEl) since November
2021, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ, HWH International Inc.
(Nasdag: HWH) (formerly known as Alset Capital Acquisition Corp.) since
January 2022, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ, Value Exchange
International Inc. (NYSE: VEII) since April 2022, the shares of which are listed
on OTC markets and DSS, Inc. since July 2022, the shares of which are listed
on NYSE.
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Directors’ Report EEZ RS

The Board is pleased to present this directors’ report (“Directors’ Report”)
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024. All cross-references mentioned in this Directors’
Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.
RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements from pages 85 to 155 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the shareholders and
investors of the Company to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company. As set out in the dividend policy, the payment and the amount
of any dividend depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to
the Group's financial performance and liquidity position, the general economic
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Group.
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Directors’ Report E8 2R S

(continued #&)

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, and an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s
business is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 18 of this annual report. Description of matters that
are material for appreciation of the state of the Group's affairs can be found
throughout this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group's internal processes, including
but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud, which
may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business operations
and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will result in
interruption of the loan operation of the Group and potential leakage of
confidential information. Operational risks may also result from emergencies
and unexpected events such as natural hazards. In view of such risks, relevant
operation policies and procedures have been adopted and are in place to
ensure that the daily operation of the Group is in compliance with the relevant
requirements of laws and regulations, such as the MLO and the SFO. Internal
reporting procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employee misconduct and/or fraud arises, any staff can report directly
to the management. The staff handbook has also stipulated that employee
misconduct and fraud are prohibited. The Group places considerable value
on data security and data privacy. The computer systems are secured with
access controls, while maintenance and update are conducted regularly by
the information technology service providers. Anti-virus softwares have been
installed for all computers in the office of the Group.
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Directors’ Report 8B 2R &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group's normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the fluctuation
of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of the Group.
Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in
maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The above
financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue generated as
well as impairment loss on loans and interests receivables. Further discussion
about the financial risks is set out in section C of note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. For credit risk in respect of the loan portfolio, the Group
has developed and adopted a set of loan approval procedures and credit
policy. The Group strives to maintain sufficient cash and adequate funding
available from its shareholders and committed line(s) of funding from financial
institution(s) and other entities. To ensure the Group maintains sufficient capital
and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements, the cash flows projection of
the Group is reviewed on a regular basis.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange rates, equity
prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may generally affect
market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in particular the
customers of personal loans, corporate loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group's revenue. The Group will from time to
time fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures, in
particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations.
Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence and/or the imposition of penalties
on the Group resulting from the offence. The compliance committee of the
Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict compliance of the
Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group. The
Company has also adopted a compliance manual which governs the Company's
compliance matters in relation to the MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as
well as other relevant regulations. More information about the compliance
committee of the Company is set out in the paragraph headed “Compliance

Committee” in the CG Report.
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Directors’ Report B ZHE continued &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the CG Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the community
and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the environment caused
by the operation of its business and enhancing its influence among different
stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an environmental-friendly business

mechanism across its operation.

The Group treasures natural resources and encourages efficient use of
electricity, water and paper. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines
are provided to employees to facilitate the creation of a green workplace.
Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper, recycled paper, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing mode when printing documents. Also,
the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 1,240 kg of used
paper were recycled during the year under review. The Group also initiates to
reduce waste on festive occasions.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set
out in the section headed "“Environmental Sustainable Development” in the
environmental, social and governance report ("ESG Report”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. In light of this, the Group upholds high
corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice
complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its money lending
business in Hong Kong which mainly include the GEM Listing Rules, the MLO
as well as the SFO.
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Directors’ Report B2 Z IR S5 (continued #)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and money
lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as money
lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest rates
and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money lender
in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the MLO. The
Group's money lending business is subject to licensing requirements. The
money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court and is renewable
annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions. Any non-compliance
with the MLO and/or the licensing conditions may result in revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence, imposition of fines and hindrance
for future renewal of the money lenders licence, which may have an adverse
impact on the Group’s money lending business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there has been
no material breach or non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a material impact on the business and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance
of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and maintains open communication with them,
which contributes to a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group's policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the sub-section headed “Employment and Labour Practices”
under the section headed “Social Sustainable Development” in the ESG Report.

customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as key
to good relationship with customers and are reviewed from time to time with
the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and enhance their
satisfaction with the products and services of the Group. The Group also strives
to ensure that honest and comprehensive information about its products is
provided to customers so that they can make appropriate informed decision. In
addition, as a large amount of personal and confidential information is handled
and processed by staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of
customers’ personal data privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in
place.
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(continued #&)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont’'d)
customers (Cont’d)

During the year under review, the Group’s major customers sourced from the
money lending business. With a diversified customer base, the Group did not
rely on any of its major customers. During the year under review, the revenue
generated from the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for 90.8% of the revenue and the revenue from our single largest customer
accounted for 26.0% of the revenue. The five largest customers were related
to the Group’s money lending business and comprised two individual and three
corporations, all of which were third parties independent with the Company
and its connected persons. The four largest customers had outstanding loan
balances with the Group as at 31 December 2024.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers was 2 years, which was negotiated on an arm’s length basis
with reference to the commercial practice and the Group's credit policy. The
management of the Group will closely monitor the loan portfolio, in particular
the loans to major customers, periodically and will continue to adopt risk
control and management strategies while broadening the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates
nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the five largest customers of the Group during the year under review.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its customers
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Products and Services Responsibility”
and “Data Privacy” under the sub-section headed "“Operating Practices” in the

ESG Report.

Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office based,
it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in general. The
Group's suppliers are mainly those who provide services supporting the daily office
operation of the Group such as cleaning service companies, office consumables
suppliers and so on. The Group therefore considers that the risk arising from
cooperation with suppliers is minimal, and is unlikely that the relationships with
these suppliers will bring significant impact on the business operation of the Group
as it is comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether the
potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of sustainable
development will be considered. During the year under review, the Group has
worked closely with its suppliers and maintained good relationship with them.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont'd)
Suppliers (Cont’d)

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its suppliers are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Supply Chain Management” under the sub-

section headed “Operating Practices” in the ESG Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
year under review and the past four years is set out in the section headed

“Financial Summary”. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024 or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has issued any shares or
debentures during the year under review.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda which the Company would be obliged to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
the year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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(continued #&)

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year under review
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 88 of
this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company for the year under review
are set out in section B of note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to equity holders comprised the contributed surplus which amounted HK$Nil
(2023: HK$NIl).

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donations
and sponsorships amounting to approximately HK$490 (2023: approximately
HK$5,000).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year under review were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Yuen May May (resigned on 18 March 2025)

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung (resigned on 27 March 2025)

Ms. Xie Si (resigned on 3 July 2024)

Mr. Tang Shek Chung (appointed on 18 March 2025) MNote)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Li Long (resigned on 23 September 2024)

Mr. Wang Zhiwei (resigned on 23 September 2024)
Mr. Wong Kin Ning

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung (appointed on 2 February 2024)

Note: Mr. Tang Shek Chung, being appointed on 18 March 2025, obtained the legal
advice referred to in Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on 18 March 2025, and
Mr. Tang Shek Chung confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no senior management other than
the Directors.

Biographical information of the Directors are set out from pages 41 to 42 of
this annual report.
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Directors’ Report BB 2 continued #)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to

be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of no more than three years and each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a term of two
years, all being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Company's
remuneration policy and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management. The Company offers competitive remuneration packages
and constantly monitors the packages with reference to the Company’s
conditions and market situations. The remuneration package generally
includes fees or salaries, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits and
so on. Emoluments payable to Directors are generally determined based
on the Group's operating results, individual performance and experience
of the Directors and comparable market practices. Details of the Directors’
emoluments are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31 December 2024.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the five individuals with highest emoluments are
set out in section B of note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or had
any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No arrangement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party,
and whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate was subsisted at the end of the year
under review or at any time during the year under review.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
(including any person who at any time during the year under review was a
Director) or an entity connected with a Director had material interest (whether
directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the year under review or at
any time during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in force during the year
under review and remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year under review, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted.
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Directors’ Report B2 Z IR S5 (continued #)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position:
Name Nature of interest
31 M

Beneficial owner
BEnEBA

Xiao Guoliang

HER

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who/which had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2024.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which was
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the GEM Listing

Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and those related
party transactions did not constitute “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 20 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standard of corporate governance and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes and will evaluate
the need to amend its existing policies and practice from time to time. Details
of the Group's corporate governance structure and practices are set out in the
CG Report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

The Audited Financial Statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
Limited (“Elite Partners”).

During the year under review, Elite Partners was re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 by the shareholders at
the AGM held on 21 June 2024. Elite Partners will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-
appoint Elite Partners and to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Tang Chek Chung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Guide") set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report for the
year ended 31 December 2024. This ESG Report highlights the initiatives and
efforts of the Company and the entities which are key to the operation of
the Group in terms of revenue, i.e. First Credit Limited and First Credit (HK)
Limited,
social sustainable development in the course of their principal business of

in the commitment to environmental sustainable development and

money lending.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group adopts the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
conducting stakeholder engagement on a regular basis to understand the key
ESG issues that are important to the business of the Group. For the sake of
materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not
relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report. All the
key ESG issues and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are reported in the
ESG Report according to recommendations of the ESG Guide. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide for
the year ended 31 December 2024. Please refer to the section of “Stakeholder
Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for detailed information of the
process adopted for selection of material ESG factors and the stakeholder

engagement.

In preparation of relevant specific KPIs, quantitative approach is adopted
for the information in the ESG Report of the Group. Sufficient description
or reference to the standards adopted have been disclosed under relevant
sections of the ESG Report. KPIs that need to be revealed compulsorily as
required by the "ESG Reporting Guide” were all addressed in the sections
headed "Environmental Sustainable Development” and “Social Sustainable
Development” of this report. Apart from complying with the reporting
“ESG Reporting Guide”,

on our compliance with relevant laws and regulations. This document is

principles of the this report has made illustrations
prepared in both English and Chinese versions and have been uploaded onto
the Company’s website at http://www.fcfg.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk.

Where feasible, the Group makes records and estimates for quantitative
information. To ensure a comprehensive understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance, the environmental performance relative to various
quantitative KPIs with comparison to 2023 figures, are disclosed in each
corresponding section. Information on the standards, methodologies and/or

calculation references are stated wherever appropriate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B8 Tt k&S

The Group uses its best endeavours to ensure consistency in the use of
methods or KPIs in achieving a meaningful comparison. There is no change to
the methods or KPIs used in this ESG Report as compared with those of the
previous year.

REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report primarily focuses on the sustainability performance of the
Group's business activities in Hong Kong, which involve one office in Sheung
Wan and one warehouse in Kwun Tong as they represent the principal
operations of the Group's business activities in Hong Kong. With the aim of
augmenting the accuracy and transparency of the disclosure in this ESG Report,
the environmental and social KPIs collected and disclosed in this ESG Report
reflect all operations in Hong Kong, unless stated otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducts stakeholder engagement for evaluation of the materiality
and importance in ESG.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to its
business and established various channels for communication with them. The
following table provides an overview of the Group’s key stakeholders including
government and regulatory authorities, shareholders and investors, professional
parties, senior management and Board of Directors, employees, customers,
suppliers and non-governmental organizations, media and communities and
the various platforms and methods of communication used to contact with,
listen and respond to the key stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Category
Fein EEHR

Expectations and Concerns

HEMEE

e
=

BE/O0F

]

continued &)

Methods of Communication

BEHN

Government and regulatory o Compliance operation o Rules and guidelines published by
authorities ° Risk management regulatory authorities, including the
o Payment of tax Stock Exchange and the SFC
o Anti-corruption o Reports of suspicious activities to
° Anti-money laundering Joint Financial Intelligence Unit (if
applicable)
R e BB e . EREE . B EE SR RER MY
. [=\fg & 12 A K 45 5l
. S EIE TR . S M EBERA (HER) RS
. k&S COEED
o FTEEE
Shareholders and investors . Compliance operation o Annual general meeting
. Risk management . Announcements and circulars
° Business performance o Financial reports
o Email or mail
BRRIEEH o EREE J BERBERE
o [\ B & 32 o NE KB
. REXRR J MIERE
. TIPSR EL
Professional parties o Compliance operation o Meetings
° Anti-corruption ° Seminars
o Risk management . Email or mail
HEAL . BREE . =
o R&EB . a5 FE
o [B\ % B B2 . BRI
Senior management and Board of ° Compliance operation o Regular management meetings
Directors ° Risk management o Board and Board committee meetings
o Products and services quality o Financial reports
RREREREEY . ABREE J THERESHR
. [2\fz & I J BEEgREFLZECEE
. EmkREEE . M HE
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Stakeholder Category Expectations and Concerns Methods of Communication
RHirEER B2 R BEAN
Employees o Health and safety o Regular meetings and management
o Employee development and training communication
o Data privacy o Job performance evaluation
o Products and service quality o Email
° Compliance operation
B8 . fEREZ S . THEZERERERR
. & B 3R RIET . THERBFIA
o BRALE . BIE
o EmkREES
. BREE
Customers . Products and service quality o Service hotline
° Data privacy o Email or mail
TP o EmkREES . R TG BAR
o BRALE . BE SR EL
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Service hotline
. Email or mail
HEmR o NS SUNEEPS: . ARTG 2VAR
. B REL
Non-governmental organizations, ° Community service o ESG reports
media and communities ° Community investment projects
o Charity
JEMAE A - R Rt [: . 1 AR 7% . RE e RERME
. HRIREIER
. BE

The Group has always been committed to maintaining a strong relationship
with its stakeholders, working towards the goal of sustainable development.
Stakeholder engagement is a key part of management’s strategy to manage
and report on issues that are most relevant to the stakeholders and the Group's
business.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

1. Identification: Benchmark the disclosure common practices on ESG topics
of companies in the money lending industry, 14 highly relevant topics
have been identified.

2. Assessment: Combining the analysis of peer benchmarking and
stakeholder survey, a list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels was
consolidated.

3. Review: Results of the materiality survey were analysed and presented as
a materiality matrix. Stakeholders’ concerns were reviewed and discussed
by the management, and the identified material topics are disclosed in
this ESG Report.
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The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

High &

HXBR

Investment

Employment Opportunities
EfEgE

Professional Development

Community f

e :
2024 Materiality Matrix

:g: fﬁigﬁ%ﬁ@ Anti-corruption

RES
Compliance with laws |

and regulations
B HRRRER

Products and
Services Quality
Caring Workplace ./ ERRBEEE
FMEAE N TS

Supply Chain Management

AR E R

Waste Management
BRNER

Emission Control BRER
PERIES)

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS' ASSESSMENT AND DECISIONS
BOEHFERREOVERE

\ Climate Change Mitigation
and Adaptation
EREERIRE

UTEREAAEEASERR HEREREE

?

Corporate
Governance

EEER

Low {&

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS
BERMEFENERMAT

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EJ& % #

High &

Key Subsidiaries/
Departments

FEMBAF A

- Incorporate relevant policies and guidelines into daily business operations

AR R RIS A B BRI EEE T
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The Board has a critical role in overseeing the ESG-related issues by exercising
its risk-related oversight after taking into account the materiality of different
ESG risks. This oversight is strategic and closely aligned with the Group's
business model and operations.

For the year under review, the Board effectively oversees risks posed by ESG
issues throughout the risk evaluation, prioritization and management processes.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the ESG-related
risks that are relevant and material in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
based on the results/findings of the materiality assessment. Various measures
and policies have been established and implemented to manage and monitor
the risks related to the ESG matters. The Board oversees the implementation
of the ESG measures and monitors the ESG-related issues through the risk
management system during the annual review.

An ESG workforce was established to introduce and facilitate implementation
of ESG-related policies and measures. It ensures that employees are
well-informed of any introductions of or amendments to the ESG-related
policies and measures. It also takes the major role of monitoring the ESG
performance and ensuring the effective implementation of the ESG-related

policies and measures.

Annual review is conducted regarding the ESG commitment and performance
of the Group based on the relevant external and internal information
gathered. Based on the findings in its annual review, the ESG workforce
makes recommendations and suggestions to the compliance committee of
the Board, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim to
enhance ESG mechanism and policies of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection and is
committed to minimising air pollutant and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emission

as it knows that the global warming issue should never be overlooked.
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For calculating GHG emissions, SME Carbon Audit Toolkit (“Toolkit"), designed
by the University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong, is used by
the Group. Considering the scale of the Group’s business, the emission factors
of the Toolkit are considered suitable and are adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group that are disclosed in this ESG Report. Even though
the Toolkit was established in 2010, the Group considers that the potential
inaccuracies due to time factor will only have a minor influence on the results.
Apart from the Toolkit, other external resources obtained from relevant
institutions such as CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") and Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited (“HK Electric”) and those extracted from the IPCC
Sixth Assessment Report 2016 (AR6) are also adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group. Considering the business nature of the Group, GHG
emissions stated in this ESG Report in relation to the respective consumption
by the key subsidiaries and offices were calculated in the unit of kilogram of
carbon dioxide in equivalent (kg CO, eq-"), or in kilogram ("kg").

The Group’s principal business was money lending. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the cause of direct emissions in the Group's operation was
mainly from the use of vehicles and vessel which run on petrol and diesel. No
direct emission was produced during the year 2024 as all vehicles and vessel
were disposed.

The approximate amount of direct emission from the Group was as follows:

AREAEREBERETE AKRERAEEKRE
REBPTABROP/NEEREFTAME ([T
B -ZRIAASEEBRER  TABOFER
FEREEEE THEMBRAEAEERK
RRE - HEREARETRENRERENNE -
HEATAMR T -—TFEY EAFERRE

MRAZREHNBEEREAEBERELEMTE-
BRTAMN BHBEE (WFEENERAA

(hE)EEEEBEERAR([EEEE])E
A E AN E TR RSB — T — NFIPCCEN
R AR E AR AR M RMARTTEARE
ErREREHENE BRINAEENEKLE
ARBE - HEREAREPINHEAEETENBER
ARBAEEEEREEENAERBHENRE 1
NAarZatmEe ((AF-S{LHmER]) kU
AT (AR REBEMNEE-

AEETEXBANEBRE T -_=F+_A
St-HLEFE EEEBEPERTFHNRR
TERAMATUAME M TENM - ZERITRY
HHERS EARBEREERRIMAE—F
THEHRRAEAEMMEEEH R EER
BEBL e

TERAREEZERBE:

Nitrogen oxides (“NO") Af ¥ ([NOLI)
Sulphur oxides ("SO,") ma by ([S0x 1)
Particulate matter ("PM") gary ([PM])

- 5.32
- 0.10
- 0.39

Apart from direct emissions, the Group’s operation also leads to energy indirect
emissions of GHG caused by the use of electricity, such as lighting and air-
conditioning system, and other indirect emissions of GHG caused by waste
disposal, water consumption and public transportation of staff.
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GHG EMISSIONS BEREHER

The approximate amount of GHG emissions from the Group was as follows: TERAAEENREREHMMTE

Greenhouse gas emissions BERBHR

Scope 1 emission BEHER kg CO; eq- 16,009
AFZEREE

Scope 2 emission BEER 1 kg CO; eq- 18,736
AFZEIREE

Scope 3 emission HE3HR 2 kg CO; eq- -
AT REE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1+2+3) BERBHREE (BE1+2+43) 3 kg €O, eg- 34,745
AR-EILHEE

Intensity (Scope 1+2+3) ZE (#E1+2+3) kg CO; eq-/sq.feet 6.59
AFZENBEE/THR

Public Transportation of staff BIFRELARBIA kg CO; eq- 1,164
AFZEHREE

Total non-hazardous waste produced ~ FiE4BEBENAE

General Waste (Disposed) —-REEN(ERE) 4

- Total -8 kg CO; eg- 240
AFZEHEE

~ Intensity -BE kg CO; eq-/sq.feet 0.05

AT ZEBEETAR
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Energy indirect emissions by the Group were mainly from electricity consumption.
The latest emission factor of CLP was extracted from the CLP's sustainable report
of 2024, and the latest emission factor of HK Electric was extracted from the
carbon calculator of HK Electric in calculating the data of 2023. The emission
factors were 0.53 kg CO, per unit for the electricity supplied by CLP and 0.66 kg
CO; per unit for electricity supplied by HK Electric.

The Toolkit was used to calculate the data of other indirect emissions of GHG by
the Group.

The Total GHG emissions of the Group, had decreased by approximately 37%
compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s disposal of
all the motor vehicles and vessel during the year.

Non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group mainly comprised general office
waste. Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste disposal
was estimated figures. The data of 2023 and 2024 were estimated by taking a
daily average volume of non-hazardous waste disposal as a sample. The total
non-hazardous waste disposal, was significantly decreased from approximately
240 kg CO, eqg-for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 18 kg
CO; eqg-for the year ended 31 December 2024. The intensity of non-hazardous
waste generated by the Group were 0.01 kg/sq. ft. for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2024.

During the year under review, the total GHG emissions had decreased by

approximately 88% as compared to the corresponding period in 2023.
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The emission reduction measures were as follows:

o actively adopt energy conservation measures which are described in the
section headed “Use of Resources” below; and

o encourage staff to use public transport instead of private vehicle.

WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING

As the principal business of the Group was office-based, no hazardous
waste as defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary
Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal, 1989" was produced
during the year under review. The Group implemented policies to enhance
employees’ awareness of waste separation and recycling relevant waste. For
the year ended 31 December 2024, the weight of used paper collected for
recycling was 1,240 kg.

In the future, the Group will continue its efforts to handle non-hazardous
waste with the aim of maintaining or reducing the total generation of such
waste. Actions to reduce wastes are as follows:

o encourage the use of electronic scanning or electronic fax to reduce
photocopying;

o introduce collection and recycling of e-waste such as old computers or
other office equipment; and

o Re-use office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature, and it encourages
efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption.
encouraged to turn off lights and electronic appliances that are not in use after
business hours. Reminder tags are placed in the office to remind employees to
adjust thermostats at a reasonable room temperature. Office consumables such
as light bulbs and stationery are replaced or purchased only when necessary in

Employees are

order to avoid wastage.

Parangy
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The Group's business is office-based, and it merely involves regular daily water
consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water that is fit for
the purpose of the Group's operation as the water supply is managed by the
building management office. Employees are reminded to turn off the water
faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of water conservation are placed
at a conspicuous position near the sinks to remind employees to save water.
Besides, in order to promote the habit of conservation of natural resources,
reminder tags are placed in the office’s washrooms to encourage the staff to
conserve toilet paper and tissues.

As the Group is not engaged in the manufacturing business, its operation does
not involve the use of packaging materials and labelling.

The volume and the intensity of energy and water consumption by the Group
during the year under review, together with the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows. Given that the principal
business of the Group was office-based, sq. ft. is used as the unit in calculating

the intensity of electricity and water consumption:

REENEBRBAZTET XRAFRBEHRK
Ko B R o AR S B R SRBRGE B Y 258 WY KR 70 H 3E
EEAME ARAKEERDIHAEEEREE K
SEIRIEEE L AKEER G E BN - 7K
UL E R T IRA REKERNRERHIALR
BREMAOMK LI BREEEARERNE
B RAEATHERARERE ZBE TN
MR

MR REET M REEED SEEETIR
BEMBIBEHRNOER -

AEBRDBEFERANERERFAKRKENTE &
ABE—Z-_=F+_A=+—"RLFENHLR
BFNT - ERAEENTEZEBENDEET
Rk 77 RAE BT H AR E RFEKE Z R B AL

2024
—E-HE
Unit  Unit/sq. feet
SFEHR
R HE
Direct energy — Petrol HEER— M
(kilowatt-hour ("kWh") ("000F FL/)N B
in '000s) ([FEREI)) - - 65,742 12.48
Indirect energy - Electricity BERIR-8 7
(kWh in '000s) ('000F EL B ) 6,122 3.10 27,554 5.23
Water Consumption FEK 1 N/A N/A 738 A
Total: P 6,122 3.10 93,296 17.71
Note 1: Since the Group operates in leased office premises, the data of its water  [ffsf1: AR AEBEEEENRAETRNLL A EEE

EEREFEREHE-

consumption was not available to the Group.

R —F REE SR REE — P H R
BLREREMERE  UERIREERERTE - H
BT

In the following year, the Group is committed to initiating further measures
addressing energy consumption, with the aim to maintain or reduce the
intensity of energy consumption. The respective measures are as follows:
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Electricity

o replace broken electronic devices and electric appliances with new
models having energy efficiency label;

o regularly clean lamps or light bulbs to ensure luminous efficiency and

effective illumination;

o keep doors, windows, and entrances closed to prevent loss of air
conditioning in the office;

o assure the cooling effect of air conditioning equipment by proper
maintenance;

. keep air-conditioning at 25C;
o promoting the use of energy-saving lighting system such as LED; and
o remind employees to turn off the office electronic appliances before get

off from work.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Being a financial institution, most of the Group's business operations involve
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment
and natural resources resulting from the Group's operation except from the
printing of loan documents and internal documents, which can result in the
consumption of a large amount of printing papers. The Group takes the
following steps to minimise the use of paper:

o promoting the use of double-sided printing and recycling non-
confidential used paper;

o reminder tags are placed in office to encourage employees to use
double-sided printing function, recycled paper; or choose "2 pages per
sheet” printing function; and

o maximize usage of e-mails, internal networks and scanners to send or

store documents electronically.
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To enhance environmental awareness of the staff not just within the office, but
also in everyday life, the Group also provided some environmental-friendly tips
to its employees.

Climate Change

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, there are no significant
climate-related issues which have impacted or which may impact the Group. In
view of the possible natural disasters or adverse weathers which might affect
the Group's operation, a business contingency plan is in place to define the
recovery process for restoring the critical business functions of the Group and
minimising the loss of revenue, customers or data. The staff handbook of the
Group also stipulates the work arrangements for office in the event of typhoon

or rainstorms.

The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on its GHG emission,
the use of resources, including electricity consumption, and discharges of
non-hazardous solid waste to quantify the Group’s achievements in terms
of its measures on emission and waste reduction and initiatives on efficient
use of resources. The management considers that the overall results of the
environmental protection measures are satisfactory, and the Group will
continue to make contributions to environmental protection.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. A caring workplace helps enhance
employees’ sense of belonging. Comprehensive guidelines and procedures
regarding human resources, including but not limited to recruitment, working
hours, rest periods as well as compensation are established. Guidelines on
recruitment, promotion and staff appraisals are set forth in the Recruitment
Policy. Employees who commit misconducts or violate company rules may
be dismissed in accordance with the Group’s dismissal policy. To encourage
retention and foster a sense of belonging, a remuneration policy and structure
is formulated to govern the remuneration package of all management and staff
of the Group. In addition to maternity leave, paternity leave and condolence
leave, employees are entitled to birthday leave which shows the Group’s
emphasis on its relationships with employees. Other benefits and welfare are
documented in the Group's Staff Handbook. To promote a breastfeeding-
friendly working environment, the Group has also joined the “Say Yes to
Breastfeeding” campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with the
Food and Health Bureau of the Department of Health.
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During the year under review, the Group had a total of 8 full-time employees REIBEFEAXN NEBHEESEZ2MEE - RAR
and the turnover rate was 44.4%. The following tables demonstrate the  A&44.4% A NEIRBERIZRERE R FiER &
distribution of employees and turnover by gender, age group and geographical @B D HIEE D HIER M REL X

region:

Female

it

- Employee diversity -EE%KI

~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 9.9 71.4

Age

under 30 30-50 Above 50
F#

30T 30E505% 505k E

— Employee diversity -EE%KI % 6.3 56.3 375
~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 66.7 103.4 533

Outside

Hong Kong Hong Kong
FE FEUS

- Employee diversity -REZKIL

— Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 97.6 0.0

E—EAEREEERAA
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Safe and Healthy Working Environment

The Group strives to create a safe working environment as recommended
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong. For instance,
computer workstations for employees are designed in a way that will help
alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort resulting
from inappropriate postures. The Group is committed to creating a
working environment free of discrimination and harassment, which can
reduce employees’ work stress. The Group prohibits discrimination in any
circumstances. Reporting channel is also provided to staff who feels being
treated unfairly and appropriate actions will be taken to address such issues if
they arise. Further, a business contingency plan is in place to protect the Group
from possible threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster in

order to maintain the safety of employees in such situations.

Given the nature of the Group’s money lending business, there was no
significant risk relating to employees’ health and safety. During the year under
review, there were neither work-related fatalities nor any lost workdays due to
work injury. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other health and safety-related laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group adopted a Staff Training and Development Policy with the aims to
improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high-quality
staff training forms the foundation for the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information, in particular,
in relation to the money lending industry with reference to the fast-changing
market environment, the business objectives of the Group and the relevant
requirements of the regulatory bodies. A self-development sponsorship policy
is also in place to encourage continuous learning and development of staff by
providing financial supports to nurture talents and explore various potentials of
staff.
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The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
that they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their
duties. Staff training is conducted every year to ensure that employees are
well-informed of the policies and procedures of the Group. Besides, staff
trainings in relation to the MLO, AML, counter-terrorist financing (“CTF") and
anti-corruption were conducted during the year under review. Details regarding
the staff trainings on AML, CTF and anti-corruption are set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Anti-corruption, AML and CTF” in the section headed
"Operating Practices” in this ESG Report.

The following table demonstrate the breakdown of employees trained and
average training hours by gender and employee category during the year under

iﬁ% (continued &)
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review:

Average training hours by employee category

RESENE SN THRIINH

- Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —#{TEHFREREEAB (hours) (/)\E5)
- Management -EB A8 (hours) (/]\%)
- General Staff -—fRET (hours) (/>

Average training hours by gender
- Male

- Female

Employees trained by employee category

RIERI B2 0 TR SR
-1

-t

RESENESNZIIER

(hours) (/)\B)
(hours) (/)\B)

~ Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —${TEHERBSREEAR %
- Management -EEAE %
~ General Staff -—REI %
Employees trained by gender BRI NRIES

- Male -5 %
- Female — i %

2024 2023
“E-ME —Z=-=F
2.00 1.25
16.67 10.50
2.00 1.25

7.5 4.25

2.0 1.80

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100
E—ERALREEERAR —E-WEEHR
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Labour Standard

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters. Candidates with different
qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the labour
base. The recruitment policy of the Group sets out a transparent mechanism
and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to child
and forced labour prevention, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity
and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that criteria such as age, gender,
marital status, nationality, race, sexual orientation, pregnancy, physical
and mental disabilities and religious belief should not be considered in the
candidates screening process so as to ensure equal treatment to all applicants.
Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the Group. To avoid illegal
employment of child and forced labour, each of the job applicants is required
to fill in an employment application form, in which personal data necessary for
ensuring that the applicant is over the statutory minimum age for employment
is collected. Personal information, such as the number of identity card, is also

collected for the sake of identity verification.

During 2024, no complaints were received regarding child or forced labour,
unfair treatment or discrimination during the recruitment and promotion
process. The Group is also not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
child and forced labour related laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Given the business of the Group as a financial services provider, suppliers of
the Group are mainly service providers who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group. The Group adopted a Vendor Selection
Guideline. During the supplier engagement and tender process, our evaluation
criteria include factors such as product and services quality, business operation
standards, delivery capabilities and price with respect to competitive fairness,
in general we will invite two or more parties to submit their quotation under
normal circumstances for new supplier engagement. The Group also works
with suppliers that supply office consumable products, and those that provide
printing and cleaning service. During 2024, the Group had around 36 suppliers,
and all of them are from Hong Kong.
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In order to build up cooperative relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines are established and adopted to outline
the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors with an
aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to safeguard
the welfare of the workers, protect the community and the environment. The
criteria include the protection of workers’ human rights, safety and health by
the suppliers and so on. The Group's employees are required to follow the
guidelines when selecting suppliers and the Group will periodically review their
implementation.

Green Procurement

To promote green procurement practices in our operations, we have taken the
following actions:

1. Use LED fluorescent tubes;

2. Durable and washable wallpaper;

3. Carpets and floors with a material recycling rate of 70%; and
4. Use recyclable photocopier.

The Group evaluates and monitors the ESG risks along the supply chain in
accordance with the risk management policy of the Group. Details of the risk
management system are set out in the section headed "“Risk Management
and Internal Control” in the CG Report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024. During 2024, the risk of suppliers bringing significant
negative impacts (whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is
negligible, and the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
incidents of suppliers regarding environmental and labour protections.

Products and Services Responsibility

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products is
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group
emphasises quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of staff
are encouraged to give prompt response and provide the best assistance to

customers.

The Group ensures the products and services provided are in compliance
with applicable laws, regulations and relevant guidelines, proper approval
procedures and relevant risk assessment would be conducted before launching
any new products. The money laundering and terrorist financing risks of all
existing products would be reviewed regularly as an ongoing monitoring

control of the product risk.
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The Group strives to provide quality financial services to the customers and
values customers’ needs. Customers who wish to make any inquiries, feedback,
recommendation or complaints may refer to the contact details set out in the
section headed “Dialogue and Communication” in this ESG Report. During

2024, the Group had not received any service-related complaints.

The Group registered its trademark with The Trade Marks Registry under
the Intellectual Property Department in 2013 and renewed in 2023 to enjoy
exclusive right to use the trademark during its provision of financial services to
customers and in the Group'’s publications and advertising materials.

During the year under review, no material breach or non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the business and operations of the
Group was found. In particular, the Group adhered to the applicable laws
MLO.

advertising, the Group complied with the latest additional licensing conditions

regulating its principal business of money lending i.e., In respect of
imposed on money lenders and was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group

relating to advertising during 2024.

Data Privacy

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data.
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the

Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in

Laws of Hong Kong) (“PDPO") and other relevant laws and regulations.
Guidelines regarding the handling of confidential information are provided
to staff to enhance information security in business operations and across
departments. Emails are encrypted and passwords are added to attachments
when necessary in order to preserve the confidentiality of material information.
Statement for the collection of personal data is provided to customers before
the collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to oversee the Group's compliance with the PDPO.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the PDPO and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to privacy

matters.

The customers can contact the data protection officer of the Group via email to
contact@firstcredit.com.hk if they have any complaints or concerns in relation
to the Group's compliance with the PDPO and/or any other relevant laws and

regulations relating to personal data privacy.
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Anti-fraud and whistle-blowing policy

The Group has established an anti-fraud policy to detect and prevent
fraud within the Group. By implementing the fraud risk assessment, the
Group is able to dictate the frequency of risk assessment and apply relative
investigation procedures so as to minimize the fraud risk. The Group has also
implemented a whistle-blowing policy, which allows all staff and independent
third parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any
possible improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters of
financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board or the Audit
Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and complaints
with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns fairly and properly. Any
person who is found to have victimized or retaliated against those who have
raised concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary sanctions. There
was no legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the reporting period.

Anti-Corruption, AML and CTF

Engaging in the money lending business, the Group’s employees have to deal
with money transactions in the day-to-day business operation. Potential risks
regarding improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees
cannot be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption and fraud and
a policy and procedure regarding AML and CTF (“AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure”) are formulated and stated to the staff.

The Group strives to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations
and does not tolerate any corruptions and other behaviours violating work
ethics. The Group stipulates the code of conduct in the staff handbook
and encourages the staff to report any incident of soliciting and accepting

advantages.

As part of the loan approval process, the Group will carry out appropriate
customer due diligence procedures on a risk-based approach to assess the risk
of money laundering and terrorist financing. Details of the Group’s customer
due diligence measures are set out in the Company’s AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure. Besides, measures regarding monitoring and reporting of suspicious
cases are also implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the
Group. Any suspicious case of money laundering or terrorist financing which
comes to the staff's knowledge will be reported to the money laundering
reporting officer (“MLRO") of the Group immediately. Taking the relevant
information into account, MLRO will evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-
case basis and will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong
Kong Government as soon as practicable if he considers it necessary. To ensure
that the existing AML and CTF systems are up-to-date, effective and able to
efficiently manage the potential money laundering and terrorist financing risks,
regular reviews will be conducted.
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For the year under review, in order to fulfill the additional licensing condition
for money lenders to comply with the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders ("AML and CTF Guideline”) published by the Companies Registry, the
Company has enhanced its AML and CTF systems in accordance with the latest
AML and CTF Guideline. Staff trainings on AML and CTF were also conducted
during the year under review to update and familiarise the staff with the latest
AML and CTF measures and to provide an overview of the enhanced AML and
CTF systems of the Company. Reading materials in relation to business ethics
and anti-corruption were circulated to all staff, so as to enhance employees’
understanding on anti-bribery and anti-corruption.

Staff handbook of the Company sets out the code of conduct regarding
accepting and soliciting advantages. All members of the staff are required to
follow the code of conduct. A reporting mechanism is also established for staff
to report any non-compliance incidents in relation to bribery, corruption, fraud,

money laundering or terrorist financing.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified. The Group did not receive any whistle-blowing reports from its
employees during the year as well. There were also neither any confirmed
incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud, money
laundering or terrorist financing against the laws of Hong Kong nor any legal
proceedings regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the year under review. The Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations relating to bribery, corruption,
fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing which have a significant impact
on the Group during 2024.

COMMUNITY

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations, should be recognised
and supported. The Group will also explore opportunities to cooperate with
different organisations that share the same values and principles with the
Group. The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social
involvement and civic consciousness by putting in both monetary resources and
time. The Group also established the ESG Team. Employees are also encouraged
to participate in community enhancement events such as volunteering and
fundraising activities.
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For the year under review, the community activities focusing on several areas of REIEFE  NEBEZ TN TR B BB (13RE
contribution such as environmental concerns and health of the Group were as  (RFEM{EEFE) LR /ESH 0T
follows:

2024 Programme Organization
—®-= EED s
March Earth Hour 2024 World Wide Fund
=A IR —/]NFF2024 HRERESS
May Smoke-free Sportswear Day 2024 Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health
A AR 52024 BEREEAEREE S
May Smoking Cessation Program in Workplace 2024 The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon
A [Z-\EE] pIAREERE TAE #2024 NEEE=EE
DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION HIERBR

The Group will continue to maintain open communication opportunities with ~AEEKEERIRE RO EETAETENH
various stakeholders on ESG matters from time to time. The Group values EBEZEFNEFHERBEBERNHE S - AEE
every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders on ESG matters HEREFHEEWRRE LR OEEARFEN

in order to improve its existing ESG policies and practice. Stakeholders may & —EZ B RiE:H NWRABRERE L%
write directly to the Group's principal place of business in Hong Kong at E AMERER -HMHENETAERRE &
Room 1, 7/F Yue Thai Commercial Building,128 Connaught Road Central, REREENAHN BEAREZTAEBTEA
Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries, SEZEBETZLEM (MurAFBTHES
feedback and recommendation regarding ESG-related issues. 128EBEEMERNETEIZ) K UEB N BEESE

enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk °
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elite
~ partners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) set out on pages 85 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional Judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
MR EHEE

BARESEE(E)

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEME N EERREEIE

Impairment of loans and interests receivables

(Refer to notes 19 and 28(C) to the consolidated financial
statements)

The measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL"”) requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models, such as
the probabilities of default, loss given default, expected future
cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of loans and interests receivables
(representing approximately 30% of total assets) and the
corresponding uncertainty inherent in such estimation of ECL
allowance, we considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the assessment of the
origination, segmentation, ongoing internal credit quality
assessments, recording and monitoring of loans and interests
receivables.

For collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the reasonableness
of the Group's ECL models, including the model input, model
design, model performance for significant loan portfolios.

We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s criteria for
assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a
lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

We challenged whether historical experience is representative
of current circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in
the loan portfolios and assessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking adjustments. Where changes had been made in model
parameters and assumptions, we evaluated the appropriateness
of such changes.

We also assessed and tested the sensitivity of the credit loss
provisions to changes in modelling assumptions.

For a sample of exposures that was subject to an individual
impairment assessment, we reviewed the Group's assumptions
on the expected future cash flows, including assumptions in
respect of the value of realisable collateral based on available
market information.

We also assessed disclosures in the financial statements relating
to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d) EREETSEE (&)
Key Audit Matter How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
B EAEIE EEME N EERREEIE
FENG B =R & 7 2 i {E

(R E M RENE19K28(C))

AERHEESR((HUEHEBRDFZRBEAHE 2F IFTZEZBRREFERTERUAERRFENESL 28 HE

BRGEEZRERCzAR UARBHEEBEEXMARE: AN EEERTE LHEREE-
DI = BB AR FAHMARKR SR E RATEERBRL

5 2 o RERFENEAEEBERAN S E5HET ES£ERHAE
e EEREEANSEN BREAEREASNELBA BAR
ENEKRERRNE (HEEEMN30%)2EE BAMBESH HFREXRR-

FEEARBRANIAETREL STRBUSTRRE zenur REmSEESRRETRENNKEEHEE

L 1B 1 BT B 12 598 O 5T B AR B L 3P
A T

EEHELEBREARRENBERANRERAATERES
MBREHER WA TAREERENA RN - HEX2H
MBREFEHED AESTEREECNER L -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &7 Z BN R 5 continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

RBMRETREVBERRNE
£ (%&)

. @%E%%%MFﬁMMEEW\Q%%
EARE LRECERNELEE B
R Q EEEFELENENERE
REENEFRBERFERTHEEE X - N
EERERRBFEERTHERR 55F
REZEMBETRRFIBFEATBRERA
MR ERKE SMREBRETR A
BABEENER -BSNERUARZ R0
BERHMESHNEZEERER - AWM
AREHHERATELEYH EEEITHA
BIBEEEmEn-

. FEGRABHRER (BIEERRE) HEE
I RERAT AREAaPBEREREE
EAnRBREINBHEBRI S NER-

e

. FrEIRHITEEER B BEEEASES
BEBEVNTBEENESTRNERE
FHEARGEVBRERBEREROMKE-
EELABERES EERRTEENERT
- BERAATENBERERAERINET -

m i

EEHRBEBRZALTH (AP ERIED
+aE g E h%ﬁﬁ&éﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁ%i”
T HARE BB A AP B PR e (R (T E R BR PR B o

ok

W

N
£ B o
o
P
o
E

BT 2At%x%%'%E%#

Bk URAERARE
- mﬁiﬁmﬁ%&EM$ﬂ&ﬁ
R BLE R B (R

NE

ot =

B I 2 g oM
o= =

\
/

o
X+

B2 m

%
e

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH

83



84

Independent Auditor’s Report B 17 &7 E BN 3R 5 continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Unit 1503, 15/F, Jubilee Centre
18 Fenwick Street

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {75 &R EMZ BNER

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=-+—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-UE —F-=
Notes HK$
Bt om
Revenue W s 6 1,826,320 6,354,746
Other income E A 3,914,456 26,210
Other gains and losses, net E e g B F R 9 868,045 (4,527,097)
6,608,821 1,853,859
Administrative expenses TR (4,854,264) (10,119,274)
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on loans W ER OREEE
receivables Bm),RERE 19, 28(c) 7,033,731 (137,068,822)
Impairment loss on interests receivables W A BORE B 1 19, 28(c) (90,947,507) (2,160,000)
Other operating expenses HEMags gy (3,723,337) (5,291,976)
Loss from operations EEBE (85,882,556) (152,786,213)
Finance costs HHEM 10 (87.,620) (148,474)
Loss before tax BRI ESIE 11 (85,970,176) (152,934,687)
Income tax expense TSR = 12 (20,347) (18,628)
Loss for the year attributable to the EAT R AE
owners of the Company FEREE (85,990,523) (152,953,315)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hib2EUzE (FX)
Item that will not be reclassified BT e EH 8
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmkRCEL
Fair value change on investment in AATFEGAEMEE
financial assets at FVTOCI WaermEEREDN
NEEEE 28(a) 648,000 (2,208,000)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FRNEMEPE
for the year s (%) 648,000 (2,208,000)
Total comprehensive expense EATHEBANEIEER
for the year attributable to the 2EAXER
owners of the Company (85,342,523) (155,161,315)
HK cents HK cents
&1l Pl
Loss per share BIREE
Basic R 16 (2.37) (4.21)
Diluted 5 16 (2.37) (4.21)
FE—EAeREERRAR —T_NFFR
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position {Z &8 ik n R

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_WNF+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-ME =4
Notes HK$
B 5 & TT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZE 17 - -
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 980,425 -
Loans and interests receivables EREFZRFE 19 = 5,030,122
Financial assets at fair value through AR FEFT AEAM 2
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ([LAAFEEANEH A
2EKENEREE 21 910,000 262,000
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 24 21,758,948 21,758,948
Total non-current assets ERBEEBTE 23,649,373 27,051,070
Current assets REBEE
Loans and interests receivables EREZ KT E 19 12,293,518 91,557,170
Financial assets at fair value through AFEFABL ([AFE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") AERDHEmMEE 20 226 1,531,896
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRE -RE Xk
other receivables H b B U 5RIB 1,982,243 2,590,856
Bank and cash balances RITMIE &A% 2,431,295 3,740,140
Tax recoverable TR EHIE 303 11,549
Total current assets MENVEEMRRE 16,707,585 99,431,611
Current liabilities RENAHE
Accruals and other payables FERT & A R H A B 5B 671,048 824,681
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 74,144 142,279
Bond payable ERES 23 512,712 1,000,000
Total current liabilities MENBEMEE 1,257,904 1,966,960
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEEE 15,449,681 97,464,651
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZBEEFE AR AE 39,099,054 124,515,721
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 - 74,144
Total non-current liabilities SERB B EESE - 74,144
NET ASSETS BAEEE 39,099,054 124,441,577
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Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position 75 87 &4 53R continued )
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-ME+—-_HA=+—H

2024
—E-OF

HK$
AT

Capital and reserves BEXRG#E

Share capital B A 25 72,576,000
Reserves L] 26 51,865,577
TOTAL EQUITY W 124,441,577

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 155 were approved H85FEI155H i H o GAMBKHREANR T -1
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025 and are F =A==+ —HLEETSHERTETIE W H

signed on its behalf by: THEERREE:
Tang Shek Chung Lai Szu Yu
EpEHEE BT
Director Director
BE BE

E—FHAEREEFRAR
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity iR &R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-T-_NF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHENES
Share Share Capital Contributed FVTOCI  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve losses
MAEERA
At 2Eb
i E AARHE HARR H R
(note 26(B)(i))  (note 26B(ii))  (note 26B(iii))
(Ms26(B)i))  (MakaoB(ii)  (Mi=kenliii))
HKS HKS HK$
EL AL AL
At 1 January 2023 W=E-=f-A-H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 1,678,000 (506,603,055) 279,602,892
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (152,953315)  (152,953,315)
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  #REM2ER X :
Fair value change on investment in WATEFALH2ENEN
financial assets at FVTOCI SRAERENDTEED - - - - (2,208,000 - (2,208,000)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ ER2 M X A5 - - - - (2,208,000) (152,953,315  (155,161,315)
Changes in equity for the year ENEREY - - - - (22080000 (152,953,315 (155,161,315)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+-A=+-A 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 (530,000) (659,556,370) 124,441,577
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (85990,523)  (85,990,523)
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ FRE {12 EMA:
Fair value change on investment in WATEF AL 2 ENES
financial assets at FVTOCI SREERENATERD - - - - 648,000 - 648,000
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ ER2MEH X A5 - - - - 648,000 (85,990,523)  (85,342,523)
Changes in equity for the year FRERS - - - - 648,000  (85990523)  (85342,523)
At 31 December 2024 RZEZRE+ZA=+-H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 118,000  (745,546,893) 39,099,054
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {6 REARE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_MFE+_A=+—HILLEE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E=-=
Notes HK$
Bt 5 BIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HEEZPNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax %75 Bl 5 1R (85,970,176) (152,934,687)
Adjustments for: KT BB
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERBETE
equipment 17 - 733,151
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18 - 789,883
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZEZ
plant and equipment L& 9 - 666,813
Bank interest income AT R B WA 8 (6,848) (5,198)
Dividend income [ e=RON 8 - (8,527)
Fair value loss on financial assets IATFEEABRED
at FVTPL CRMEENATEEIR 9 210,906 2,497,123
Realised gain from financial assets AR FEFABENER
at FVTPL BEND SR WE 9 (44,174) (217,576)
Finance costs %8R 10 87,620 148,474
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on loans EWER ORERBERD)
receivables JORERR 28(c) (7,033,731) 137,068,822
Impairment loss on interest receivables EUF BOREREE 28() 90,947,507 2,160,000
Impairment loss recognised on MYE - BB MR EER
property, plant and equipment BR B 18 17 - 444,197
(Reversal of)/impairment loss recognised — Ft{E FAE B EFERN
on right-of-use assets CREEERR),
VERIENEiE] 18 (980,425) 1,228,084
Operating loss before working capital BEEHAILE
changes B8 (2,789,321) (7,429,441)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and ERERRF B,
interests receivables (3 hn) 379,998 (19,372,518)
Decrease in prepayments, TERTFRIE - i@ R H A FE U
deposits and other receivables FRIE R 608,613 2,399,322
Decrease in accruals and other payables — fE&+ & A K H s fE < 5008
e (142,245) (432,342)
Cash used in operations EEMAERS (1,942,955) (24,834,979)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEAENEH (9,101) (6,182)
Net cash used in operating activities KEFEMARSFE (1,952,056) (24,841,161)

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows fR& IR T M E I continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

RETHNHRESRE

2024
—E-OF
HK$

&I

Bank interest received EUERITH A 5,198
Dividend received 2 AR B 8,527
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE HERRE

plant and equipment FR8 18 980,100
Proceed from disposal of financial assets & U AFEFF ABZEH

at FVTPL CREEMSHRE 8,320,233
Purchases of property, BEWE BERK

plant and equipment 17 (719,446)
Net cash generated from investing BEEEMERFE

activities 8,594,612
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHNRSRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bond payable e E 5 Pri5 5/1E 29 1,000,000
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEEAER2HD

lease liabilities 29 (718,548)
Repayment of bond payable BEENES 29 -
Interest paid EFLE (131,474)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA) A8

financing activities e FHE 149,978
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRSEB/BYBLFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (16,096,571)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EVRERBELEEY

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,836,711
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREERBELEEY

AT END OF YEAR, represented by 15
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S 3,740,140
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GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business is Room 1,
7/F, Yue Thai Commercial Building, 128 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017,
the Securities and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange
to suspend the trading in the shares of the Company. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the trading of shares of the
Company remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements iS85 RMTsE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

HE_ZT-_M&+-_A=+—HLHFE
—RER

F—EReREEERAR([FATE
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EFMME R M i AClarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 5% 38 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. ERAEABUBREER([F
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Bt 7% 3R Al]) z1&%
(“HKFRSs”)

kY
/|

=
Iff
i

\
o

(A)  AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY

=

MAEFZ @B LR 2 BB R

EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the

current year.

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements
for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements
of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be
accounted for as a sale. The amendments require a seller-lessee
to determine “lease payments” or “revised lease payments”
such that the seller-lessee would not recognise a gain or loss
that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. The
amendments also clarify that applying the requirements does not
prevent the seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any gain
or loss relating to subsequent partial or full termination of a lease.
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(A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3725
BE-T-ME+-A=-+—BIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Cont'd)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Cont'd)

According to the transitional provisions, the Group has applied the
new accounting policy retrospectively to the sale and leaseback
transactions entered into by the Group as the seller-lessee
after the initial application of HKFRS 16. The application of the
amendments has no material impact on the Company's financial
position and performance.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (2020) (the "2020 Amendments") and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the "2022
Amendments"”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or noncurrent, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 5 81753k

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE T -_WNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(A)  AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Cont'd)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Cont’d)

o clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity's own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity's own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that only
covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments
also specify that covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the reporting
date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability
is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period, an entity discloses information
that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk
of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after
the reporting period. This would include information about the
covenants, the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts
and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have
difficulties complying with the covenants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. EREAUKEHKREER ([F

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BB HREER]) 21&85T
(“HKFRSs") (Cont'd) (4&)
(A)  AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS THAT ARE MANDATORILY (A AARFEE G| AR BB BER

EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Cont'd)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation

5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Cont’d)

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The amendments add a disclosure objective to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables
users of financial statements to assess the effects of those
arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows.

In addition, HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was
amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example
within the requirements to disclose information about an entity’s

exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

In accordance with the transition provision, the entity is not
required to disclose comparative information for any reporting
periods presented before the beginning of the annual reporting
period in the first year of application as well as the information
required by HKAS 7:44 (b)(ii) and (b)(iii) above as at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
those amendments.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 5% 38 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. ER&
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 7 Bt %%
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

B R R 8 R AR 2 $ AT R {8
RIEBW RS EL

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B)
YET EFFECTIVE

REHWEEFER THEB/ME M
REBE R RGBT BEM B RS

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: A28 :
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the EAUBEHRE EMIASER
and HKFRS 7 Classification and B9 HE T
Measurement of Financial BB RS
Instruments? HERIET7R 2 IEET
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB ERE WA Z B ER
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its SR 109 & NELE LD
Associate or Joint Venture' Eae | 2B HER
2858 2 BT AAEE
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS EEUBERE EEUBEHRE
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards — R R R T ER
Volume 113 pACHI 2 FEE—
E11%53
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? Ehest#H| R A AT A2
E2198 2 185
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in EEUBERE Bz 225
Financial Statements* B ZE 1890 R E

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

The directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained

in the major accounting policy information set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(A)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computers 50%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Vessel 12.5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
BE-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—BIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life

and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7255

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-_Z_OF+_-_A=+t—RHLLEE

E\j f% &i% Bﬁ EE (continued #&)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EEETHHREN (&)

INFORMATION (Cont’d)

D)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset

(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
BE-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—BIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model objective
by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows: and

o the contractual terms given on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC!

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profit.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the "other gain/(loss)” in line

item.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under an ECL model
on financial assets (including CB, loans and interests receivables,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
BE-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—BIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for loans and interests
receivables without significant financing component. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

(@) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

(b)  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

E\j f% &i% Bﬁ EE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE T -_WNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

(c)  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to g E

meet its debt obligations;

(d) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the (d)

operating results of the debtor; or

(e) an actual or expected significant adverse change (e)
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet

either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the °

debtor; or
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(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(if)

(1)

Definition of default (Cont'd)

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay is creditors, including the Group, in full

(without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportive
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of active market for the financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of loans receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on loans
and interests receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of loans and
interests receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received. On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to

retained profit.
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accruals and other payables, lease
liabilities and bond payable are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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(F)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,

demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less that

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

0]

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(©)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
(i) LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

For LSP obligations, the estimated amount of future benefit
is determined after deducting the negative service cost
arising from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
MPF contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant

employees.
(iv)  Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognize
any related restructuring costs.

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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(H)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

TAXATION (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

REVENUE

Interest income from loan facilities

Interest income charged on loan facilities is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(K)  RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A);

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which the material
policies are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(E), ECL measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 75
For the year ended 31 December 2024

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

ECL allowance for loans and interests receivables

The directors estimate the amount of ECL allowance for loans and
interests receivables based on the credit risk of loans and interests
receivables. The amount of the loss allowance based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2024, impairment allowance for loans and interests
receivables was approximately HK$644.71 million (2023: approximately
HK$580.45 million).

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2024, a deferred tax asset of HK$21,758,948
(2023: HK$21,758,948) which principally arising from the provision
for impairment on loans receivables has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$686,274,087 (2023:
HK$683,079,465) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future, which is a key source of estimation uncertainty. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

E\Z %% &?EBN %E (continued #&)
HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—HLFE

EXRSFHHE R TRE
EENETERR (&)

BT HRERR 2 T ERIR

NTRSIRBEHNEIERRENBEHR
AT EERRNEMEZRR  ZFRK
LRERRALEHTEMBREFENEER
BEMR@EHRAEHE-
EREREMNEHEREEBERE
EEREBEBWEFRASNERERR & E
WERENENBREEBENSER RIE
BHEEBRERAGFENBERESRER
BANENASRENMEARNESREER
SERHUBRNAARSRE ZMNERE (1%
MR ERRETNERNRNR)GE - W
AXBREREENTEHR KEFERBERE
fein N - BRI REE A B AR (E R 1R »

R-ZE-WNF+-_A=+—H EBREZKE
F) B HY R (B B 15 49644,710,0008 T (- &
— =4 :#9580,450,000/8 ) °

EETIREE
R-Z-—mME+-A=+—H FE%KAE

EREROREREN —BEEHEELE
21,758,948 T (=T = =4 :21,758,948
BT B REEE M BRI RER - HARKRR
i K RO S B TEOR - A UL I R R TE S 1B
686,274,087 70 (Z T =4 : 683,079,465
TRREEHEEAE-BEMBEEEN]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

6.

REVENUE

6. Wz

Revenue from sources other than contracts
with customers:

EXBENT WA

Interest income from loan facilities

KEEMAR (REREP
FISLHAHISN) 2 s :

1,826,320 6,354,746

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the management has
reassessed the collectability of the interest income of certain credit-
impaired loans receivables that are no longer probable and therefore not
recognise the interest income in the profit or loss during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all of the Group’s revenue has
been generated from the provision and arrangement of credit financing
in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans
offered to the Group's customers. Information reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker (the executive directors of the Company),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of the Group's
performance, is focused on the operating results of the Group as a
whole, as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete financial
information is available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information
about the Group’s products and services was presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023. For the years ended 31 December 2024
revenue of HK$1,564,320 (2023: Nil) were generated from 4 external
customers amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued &)

8. OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income
Dividend income
Bad debts recovery
Sundry income

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

8. Hiblr A

HRAT RS WA

5,198

iz S A 8,527
AR Bl -
MIEMA 12,485
26,210

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Fair value loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Realised gain from financial assets
at FVTPL

Impairment loss recognised on property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of /(impairment loss) recognised
on right-of-use assets

Others

9. Ht W= REEFHE

2024
—F_lmE
HK$
&

UNAFEFABENEMEED

NEEEE (2,497,123)

LEYME BERRENER
(666,813)

NAFEFABZHEREEN

B8R M= 217,576
HWE - WE REEERN

BEEE (444,197)
REAREERRNRAE

BEER CREEE) (1,228,084)
EfhIEH 91,544

(4,527,097)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on bond payable

10. B ER

HEBEMHNE 110,049
EREHFHTE 38,425
148,474

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is stated after charging the following:

Auditor’s remuneration

— audit services

— other services

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Legal and professional fees

11. BRBIATES 18
G R B S IE E I T 5 &

2024
—F_lE
HK$
&I

% BEM B &
— Iz B8RS 690,000
—H AR -
M- BEREETE

733,151
FREEENE 789,883
FRERBEXEBR 2,423,419

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Provision for the year

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

12. BB X

2024
—EB-lF

EDEAR IR — BB FS M
FAREE

Deferred tax (note 24)

BEFEREETR (GBERE) (7,851)
(7,851)

EETIE (FF3E24) 26,479
18,628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

I FE IR TSI B (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T -_ME+-_A=+—HIL&EE

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of a corporation are taxed at 8.25%, and assessable
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the nominated
Group company is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The assessable profits of other Group companies in
Hong Kong continue to be taxed at the tax rate of 16.5%.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the loss before
tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

12.

e (&)

IR IE A S TR AR H - 2 5] 82,000,000 7T &
SERE A 2 B R 58.25% @ M8 i82,000,000
BILEABABEZHER165% HEZT
THFERZE=F+A=F+—HBItF
rﬁﬁk%%@ AIK) BB TS %Rm;zﬂ %IJ
BEMAGTE HMASENEER

réﬂﬁfru/?%i;&ws%ﬂ’m i&ﬁﬁo

PIT 15 75 5 S2 S0 755 A &5 1R SR A BB RIS X
BEZ R

2024
—E-OE

Loss before tax B T AT A5 48 (85,970,176) (152,934,687)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of RERAHE165% (ZT =4

16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 16.5% )T E R IE (14,185,078) (25,234,223)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — HZERRI U A BTS2 2 (162,900) (41,865)
Tax effect of expenses that are AR MBRAZOBE T E

not deductible 13,938,513 1,414,916
Tax effect of temporary difference RERERFEZENTBTE

not recognised (91,603) 23,159,544
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MBI EEENTRGE (13,022) -
Tax effect of tax concession MEEBREENREE (1,500) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses PABERERTIEEERLN

not previously recognised izl (685,526) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R ?Rﬁ%%?ﬁﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%; 1,212,638 728,107
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAEFERETR (BEEE) 8,825 (7,851)
Income tax expense FIEHiAX 20,347 18,628

FE—EAeREERRAR —T_NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 13. EERAMAX

RERMAX

Employee benefits expenses (excluding

directors’ emoluments): (TBEEESEME)
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 4,221,656
Pension scheme contributions RIR@ET &K 202,888
4,424,544
(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS (A RIREFEIMER
No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2023: Nil). FAMESHARRBEF (=T ==
No balance (2023: Nil) of forfeited contributions were available at FE) o NFHERB BED LU MR
the year-end to reduce future contributions. WiEsR (T _=F: E)ATAREH
R
(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES B) hEE=HEER
The five highest paid employees in the Group during the year FRN AEEREGERFREEREM
included two directors (2023: two) whose emoluments are set out BEF(ZTE_=F:-MB) EM=
in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid IR T14 - ER=E = EER
employees (2023: three) are as follows: (ZEBEZ=F:ZH)2M&=F1E=7
LUNNE

2024
—F-lmE

HK$
AT

e M REWMEN

Salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind 1,164,167
Pension scheme contributions BRINSEF BT 50,158
1,214,325
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 5% %R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Cont’'d)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2023: three) highest paid
employees fell within the following bands:

13. BEE/AMX (&

B) hEE=#HER (&)

HHB =R (ZT_=F:Z&)&&e#
EEOME N FIATEHEE:

2024
—F-mE

Number of
employees

EE A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(A)

DIRECTORS' AND CEO'S EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the directors and the CEO, Ms. Ho Yuen May
May, for the year ended 31 December 2024 disclosed pursuant to
applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
is set out below:

Emoluments paid

14 EE|/AK A &=

(A BEFRITRASME

WA R R A REB DB GRHIE
BEFRTREARAABRZTEE=
T-WNF+=ZA=+—HIEFEH
BEIIWAT

or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director/CEO,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

BRETATHUES TBERI B (FRBFATHRMEBEAF)

PR B AR %5 E e fE B9 BN &

Pension scheme

Salaries contributions
Bihe
HELEEA

Executive directors: HITES:

Xie Si (Note 1) s (1) - 121,935 - 121,935
Lui Cheuk Fung BEE 660,000 - - 660,000
Lai Szu Yu BRI - 240,000 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May (Note 2) gk (B aE2) - 715,000 18,000 733,000
Independent non-executive directors: BIEHITES:

Fung Kam Man Vit he 120,000 - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei (Note 3) A4 (F5E3) 87,667 - - 87,667
Wong Kin Ning ERE 120,000 - - 120,000
Wong Shui Yeing (Note 4) EIRF LA (Hsd) 109,655 - - 109,655
Li Long (Note 3) ZEE (HEE3) 87,667 - - 87,667
Total B 1,184,989 1,076,935 30,000 2,291,924

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH : E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & &

—E-omE+-A=t+-BLER

=

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’'d)

(A)

DIRECTORS' AND CEO'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

The remuneration of the directors and the CEO for the year ended

31 December 2023 is set out below:

14 EE/ARAE (&

A BERTREZM: (&

BENTRERBE T =1+
A=+—BLEFENMEHEIMT

Executive directors: BITES:
Xie Si BIED - 240,000 - 240,000
Lui Cheuk Fung Be% 660,000 - - 660,000
Lai Szu Yu BRI - 240,000 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May Al 30 7% - 715,000 18,000 733,000
Independent non-executive directors: BIEHITES:
Fung Kam Man B8R 120,000 - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei Tk 120,000 - - 120,000
Wong Kin Ning BiEE 120,000 - - 120,000
Li Long B 120,000 - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (Note 5) 2B (M EES) 110,000 - - 110,000
Total ok 1,250,000 1,195,000 30,000 2,475,000
Note: B 5
Note 1: Resigned on 3 July 2024 M1 : RAZZ_ME+A=ZHFEI-
Note 2: Resigned on 18 March 2025 M2 : RZT-_RAF=AT+N\B&E-
Note 3: Resigned on 23 September 2024 33 : RZZE_WMFEAA-+=HEIE-
Note 4: Appointed on 2 February 2024 Mizkd: R-T_NF_A_AEZT-
Note 5: Resigned on 30 November 2023 M5 R-ZTE-—=F+—AB=t+HET-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ AND CEQ’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Ms. Ho Yuen May May is the CEO of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by her as the Chief Executive Officer.

There was no arrangement under which a Director or the CEO
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2023: Nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were
no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as set out in note 13 as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company (including any person who
at any time during the year was a director) or the director’s
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BE_ZFT_NF+-A=+—"HILFE

14 EE/ARRE (&)

EERTTBREEME (&)

WEBmZ L /AR RAITHAE - £EX
HREFAMELHNNERRRERTR
BEPTRERE 2 E -

FARBEERTHREZNEXRAE
MEEAMENZHE(ZF =4
&) -

HE-_Z-_NFRER-_Z-_=F+=A4
=ST-ALFE - AEEHERNES
M FIBHE AR ERFMALTH
FER AL Z RS EMNERRIE  ER
hA 7 £ [ ok hn A AN &2 [E 14 &Y 5% B ok
TERBERE -

EXFRBTEEZCME IR EER
BARABARAEEEBRREZ RS
s e

EXRBILIFNITESOME 5L
REREARBESRIRHE 2 REM
XA e

FENRS BHLAONEX
Rz

ARAEZ (BRRFALAERLS
BEEZHEAADIREENHEER
BERNFRAFREMESE DRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE
15. DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

16. LOSS PER SHARE

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$85,990,523 (2023:
HK$152,953,315) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 3,628,800,000 (2023: 3,628,800,000) in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share as the

Company did not have any potential ordinary shares outstanding during
the two years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% -BERKE

Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
Buildings  improvements fixture  equipment  Computers vehicles Vessel
HE RER
¥ MR BEXE B RE Lt
HK$ HKS HKS HKS
T 7 #E T AT T
Cost %
At 1 January 2023 i g—— e = 187,561 1,245,220 687,116 407,386 4,176,407 900,000 1,864,683 9,468,373
Additions hE = - 23,500 8,446 582,500 105,000 - 719,446
Disposals HE = = = = - (1,005,000) (1,864,683  (2,869,683)
Written off s = (970,730) - - - - - (970,730)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZ-Z#+-A=1+-RHEK
1 January 2024 and “Z-ME-A-BR
31 December 2024 ZRCMEFZA=1-H 187,561 274,490 710,616 415,832 4,758,907 - - 6,347,406

Accumulated depreciation ~ BEitFERE

and impairment

At 1 January 2023 i s =] 187,561 1,245,220 674,869 402,619 3,818,554 393,750 640,985 7,363,558
Charge for the year FRY M - - 2,833 10,953 531,330 149,188 38,847 733,151
Disposals HE - - - - - (542,938) (679,832)  (1,222,770)
Written off k] = (970,730) - - - - - (970,730)
Impairment FifE - - 32,914 2,260 409,023 - - 444,197
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=§+ZA=1+-REk

1 January 2024 and —Z-ME-A-BR

31 December 2024 “E-mFE+-A=1+-H 187,561 274,490 710,616 415,832 4,758,907 - - 6,347,406
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2024 RZEZME+-A=1-H - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=ZHE+-A=+-H - - - - - - - -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$444,197 on the property, plant and equipment
which has been fully impaired. Based on the profit forecast prepared by
the management, the value in use of the recoverable amount, which
was primarily affected by increasingly competitive business environment
of credit financing, was estimated to be less than its carrying amount.

HE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE &
SEEHDE - BELREH(E2EMRE)
MR EE 184441978 T IRIBE IR B
mEHARFITEL BT KESENERE
B(HEXrEX EERENERNRERF e
BREE)RNEEEE

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE T -_WNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EREEE
Leasehold Lease
land property
HELH HEym%E
HK$ HK$
#&IT T
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2023 N-—E-_=%F—H—H 1,618,044 4,048,000 5,666,044
Additions NE - 272,167 272,167
Write off (Note A) s (MFEA) = (4,048,000) (4,048,000)
At 31 December 2023, RZEZ=F+=ZRA=+—8"
1 January 2024 and —EoME—RF—BRK
31 December 2024 —ZE-MNE+=-A=+—H 1,618,044 272,167 1,890,211

Accumulated depreciation RitIRERAEE
and impairment

At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%—H—H 550,551 3,369,693 3,920,244
Charge for the year FRZ M 43,534 746,349 789,883
Write off (Note A) sy (MEEEA) - (4,048,000) (4,048,000)
Impairment (Note B) A (FFEB) 1,023,959 204,125 1,228,084
At 31 December 2023 and EA_Z::¢+_H_+—E|&

1 January 2024 —E-|m&—HF—H 1,618,044 272,167 1,890,211
Reversal of impairment (Note B) JE{E# =l (Ki7EB) (980,425) - (980,425)
At 31 December 2024 RZTEZMF+=A=+—~H 637,619 272,167 909,786
Carrying amount RE{E
At 31 December 2024 RZE-_MFE+-A=+—H 980,425 - 980,425
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H - - -

Notes: Bt 5T

A.  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost and A HEZZFE-_=F+-A=+—HItF
accumulated deprecation of right-of-use assets amounted to E-BaRENER TREEENK
approximately HK$4,048,000 were written off due to the expiry of N R E T E 494,048,000 JT T A
the leases. gy o

B.  During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised B. HE_ZT_MNF+_A=+—HI%F
a reversal of impairment loss of HK$980,425 (2023: impairment EAEBEERERAREE(E2H
loss HK$1,228,084) on the right-of-use assets. Based on the RE) HERR BB 18 B [E1980,4258 T
assessment prepared by the management, the fair value less cost T =R Ek181,228,084/8
of disposal, was estimated to be higher than its carrying amount To) o IRIRE R E R AT EE
as if no impairment was made. ATERAEEXNASRERETE K

703 48 1 S RE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The following table is the amount recognised in profit or loss:

18. EFAIEEE (&)

TERANERRRANSHE:

CREEENE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

= 789,883

The Group had total cash outflows for leases including interest paid on
lease liabilities and payment of lease liabilities amounted to HK$150,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$828,597).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The Group's leasehold land in Hong Kong under medium lease within 23
years.

For both years, the Group leases one office for its operations. Lease
contract were entered into for fixed term of 2 years (2023: 2 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

BE-_ZT-_NOMF+-_A=+—HLFE"
AEBRHEEMEANRS R L BE (21
RAEEEIMNNAERINHEERRE) A
150,000/ 7T (ZZF = =4 :828,59747T) °

HELT

NREBABBZHELHUTBBOEH
23% o

RUMEFE AEESHLERE @
MAE-HESOEMFNETHR (—F
—=ZF ME)RIZ - MERRTIRERE
ERER MBS NRGREGES - RNEEHR
ERRFHETAREHRORER  AEE
ERANNERLETEAHNABREHNITH
HARR

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 19. EWER KA E

Fixed-rate loans receivables EUE BE &

Accrued interest receivables FE W FE ST FI B

Less: ECL on individual assessment BB AR TR E R EE
ECL on collective assessment SRITENEREEERR
ECL on accrued interest receivables FEUR FEET R B TE BRI Z H B 18

Analysed as: R

— Non-current - ERB

- Current - n®

The range of effective interest rate of fixed-rate loans receivables are
from 10% to 46% (2023: 10% to 46%).

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
and interests receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2024

2024
—EB-lE

HK$
AT

580,940,605
96,101,425

677,042,030
(395,033,294)
(183,261,444)

(2,160,000)

96,587,292

5,030,122
91,557,170

96,587,292

ERTEERZERFNEXSHEN F10%E
46% (T E-=FE 1 10%E46% ) °

7R S [ — B R A ) R i (B B R R B R
ME BREEEARRERE-ERET
HiedBmMeseh-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 5% %R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

19. LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES

(Cont’d)

The loans and interests receivables above were denominated in HK$.
The credit quality analysis of the gross carrying amounts of loans and

interests receivables were as follows:

BRERRFE (&)

bt g E SRR A S A TR E - EUE K
A SEEEAENEEERZMOT

Neither past due nor impaired R IR RE
— Unsecured —mIER 105,830 21,180,690
Less than 3 months past due BETE={@A 2,007,890 31,178
2,113,720 21,211,868
Impaired (Note) RAE (M) 654,888,246 655,830,162
657,001,966 677,042,030

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a customer
who has repayment to the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors were of the opinion that these loans were not yet credit
impaired as these loans receivables would be substantially/fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period or there had not been a significant
change in credit quality on these balances.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, amongst all past due but not
impaired loans, the Group did not have secured loan. Save for the
above, the Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining
individually past due but not impaired loans receivables as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

HARAENEF AR -

2380 HR 8 30 S OB (E /0 B MR TR B — B R R
SEEEFLHENEPAM - REBELR
HRZSEKERERREHE KRB,
FHBROHAZELABNEEERLRER
HE RERWAREZEEFETEERME -

R -—NER-_FBE-_=F+-A=+—
B REEEERAERBRENERFR K&
EYEEERBEER-BRLAEIN RZF
TNERZZEI=FTZA=ZT—H AKE
i 77 N 1 o= = 3 R == 03
WERFBEMERR-

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 19. ERERRRE (&)
(Cont’d)
Details of movement of ECL allowance for the year ended 31 December HE-_ZT-_NFR-_ZT-_=F1+=A
2024 and 2023 is set out in note 28(C) to the consolidated financial S+ —HIEFEEHEEBEEENES
statements. BN R E B IS R M 5E28(C) ©

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. %ﬁsFﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬂgﬁEﬂﬁ

SREIA R P EFABR

Financial assets mandatorily measured

at FVTPL: AENEREE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZBRAES
(Note 20(A)) (P 5E20(A)) 1,531,896
1,531,896
Analysed for reporting purposes BEWREBOMEZANT
— Current assets —MENAE 1,531,896
1,531,896

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 75 2R 28 MY 55 continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T -_ME+-_A=+—HIL&EE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd)

(A)  LISTED SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING

20. %’?$EE‘I‘)\E§H’\J$E§§

A FREEENLETWRES

2024
—E-@E

Listed securities held for trading: BEEEMLEMHES:

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ —R & T HRAE 226 1,531,896
Analysed as: r=E

Current asset mENE E 226 1,531,896

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group disposed
of certain equity securities for aggregate consideration of
HK$1,364,938 (2023: HK$8,320,233) and recognised a realised
gain of HK$44,174 (2023: HK$217,576) and a fair value loss of
HK$210,906 (2023: HK$2,497,123) was recognised to profit or
loss.

The fair value of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are based
on the current market prices of such equity securities as at the
end of the reporting period.

The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity
securities that offer the Company the opportunity for return
through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed
maturity or coupon rate.

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair value measurements of
the Group's investment in listed securities classified as financial
assets at FVTPL are recurring and are determined using level 1
input.

HE-_ZT-_MF+=-_A=+—H1
FE AEELELORAEFUL
K{E1,364,9388B L (Z T ==4F:
8,320,233/ ) WHERED B M
44174 T (ZE =% :217,576
BLIRREBERPHERARAFEEE
210,906/87C (=T = =% :2,497,123
BIT) °

%/%J:m MR A BH QA FEHE
NZERAEBESFNIREBRRNRITT

o

m%

tREREERN EHRAESZ MR
B TEBRBRARXFERER
A AR 0 R o H I [EE A
HENRES K-

RZTEZWNER T Z=F+=A
=t—H8 AEESBEAEUNAFERT
ABHNEMEEN LTEFRER
AEMATFEDEEME - WFERAE—
T ABURETE -

E-RALREBARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 21. LA Est AEME2E W E
NEMEE

2024
—E-@E

Non-current ERB

Equity investments designated HEERAUATFER AHAM
at FVTOCI ZEW S RARE
— Unlisted equity investments (Note) —JEEmRAEE () 262,000
Note:  Unlisted investment shares were measured at FVTOCI. Under HKFRS 9, aE: FELEMBERMDARFEFAHMEE
these investments are all classified as financial assets measured at FVTOCI. Wt E - RIBE B B EERIFH -
Subsequent changes in fair value of these investments are recognised RERENDBERUARATEF AL ME
in FVTOCI reserve and the cumulative gains or loss on disposals are HERFENCREE ZSREATE
recognised in retained earnings. WEEZHRUADTFET AELMEEI
HEOFEEER MEEEEN R
BENMRE B F R -
The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's equity Ll FTRAREEAEENE BT
interest in private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors of MRIHABTEBORE - RQAREEE
the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity BEEEZERTIAREEERURT
instruments as FVTOCI. Ert AHAL 2 E W o
22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEEE
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as R ZNFER T _=F+=A=+—
follows: H - HE8ENEERDT:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 74,144
216,423
Less: Amount due for settlement BRBBEBETRTZEAR
within 12 months shown IS EHRIA
under current liabilities (142,279)
Amount due for settlement after ERFHEEBE TR ZEA%
12 months shown under B HRE E R B
non-current liabilities 74,144
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFSHX 110,049
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HAREEAENINETYHESEENE
liabilities was 5.54% (2023: 5.54%). 5H554% (ZE =% :554%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

23. BOND PAYABLE

Movement of the bond payable is as follows:

23. B ES

BNEHRZEHNT:

At 1 January ®—A—H 1,000,000 -
Proceeds from issuance of bond BITESHEHRIE - 1,000,000
Repayment BN (561,575) -
Accrued interests e A 79,899 17,000
518,324 1,017,000

Less: Accrued interests recognised R R FERT B R I A E < RRIE
in accruals and other payables R EET RS (5.612) (17,000)
At 31 December n+=-—A=+—H 512,712 1,000,000

The balance is repayable on 31 December 2025 and shown under
current liabilities.

The Group issued a bond with a principal amount of HK$1,000,000 in
2023. No transaction costs attributable to the issuance of the bond. The
bond is unsecured and the interest rate of the bond is fixed at 8.5% per
annum and their interest is paid semi-annually.

Upon the maturity date on 19 July 2024, the Group repaid the principal
partially and the repayment of the remaining balance was extended to
31 December 2025 with other terms of the bond remains unchanged.

BHEAR—FRNER IRRBEEETZ

RZZEZ=FXEEETTAELHEAR
1,000,000 T EH - BEITEHLSBELE
RGEAEHFRHEEE MEFNETEF
FEA8S% FBEEBFFIMN—IR-

ME-T-MELAHNR AKED
EEHHAS MEBRHEEMATEE
FoAFT-AS A EEHEBER
W TR

—

F-ERASBERARAT —E-MEFH i.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAX

The following are deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the
Group:

At 1 January 2023 R-_ZTE_=F—H—H
Charged to profit or loss FREBREZPOGE (FFFE12)
for the year (note 12)

At 31 December 2023, R-ZE-_=%F+-A=+—8"
1 January 2024 and —E-ME—RF—BRK
31 December 2024 TN E+=ZA=+—H

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for statement
of financial position purposes:

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE

24, EERE

NTRASERBZECHAEERAR:

Provision for
impairment
Accelerated on loans

tax receivables

depreciation and CB

B = $6 B 18 %5
IEB IR E B

52,350 (21,837,777) (21,785,427)

26,479 - 26,479

VAT R st B B AR R 2R T & O R E B3 18 45 #4
DT

21,758,948

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$686,274,087
(2023: HK$683,079,465) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2024

& HIR - B R R E T RIRZ NHERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

I FE IR TSI B (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE T -_ME+-_A=+—HIL&EE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Authorised:
250,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

EE:
250,000,000,000%

25. XA FRA

HK$0.02 each FIR0.02B LW LB 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRERE:
3,628,800,000 ordinary shares of 3,628,800,0000%
HK$0.02 each FRR0.02B LR LB 72,576,000 72,576,000
26. RESERVES 26. f#1E
(A)  GROUP A AEE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 85 and 88 of this annual report

respectively.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

0)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2014, the change
of the domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders. The change
of domicile of the Company was completed on 5 February
2015. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

F$¢ﬁ%%ﬁ&%%ﬁmﬁa
REMEERERRES %*m@ﬁ

EREEERA®
() Bini(®

BEREESARE ARQF
BHEEEMNES A HIK TR
ARIRE HEEEZED KRR

SHHEE A BABENE
@E%E%%ﬁ@&¢aﬂ%
BT

® iR 7 WA 2/
:+E5”ﬁm%$ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BBHFRRER AR
m%gﬁ%pﬁiE%%E%
BRERftE-ARREBMR-F
—AF-_AAHEZEX-BER
RE-NAN—FRAE AR
AIRMBEERNE S A AME

AT DK »

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2024

26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(B)

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’'s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

(B)

=

E\j f% ﬁi%ﬁﬁ EE (continued #&)
HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—HBLFE

26. 1 (&)

FEMEERB (&)

(i)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing debts as may
be appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
comprises bond payable and lease liabilities less bank and cash balances.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
retained profits and other reserves).

The Group recorded a net cash of approximately HK$2,431,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: HK$3,740,000). Therefore, the Group has a zero
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2024 (2023: zero gearing ratio).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group is in order to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public float
requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2024, 70.50%
(2023: 70.50%) of the shares were in public hands.

27. EXERER

FEBEAERNTIZEERARELAER
BEERBBLENRENREFRIFNERL
EoOPXFREEBRENRARREE

FEBERERGEHBIRBEERR 2 E
BREREEzZRRSIEMELARE A&
B A BB R Z R T 5 Pl BR IR
BT BROHEBIBEORAES (W
BR)ARBRALEAREE -

AEERBEEABLETEREAN YLK
DREBFERACHEE ARG FHE
MENAERS - BB FRRERNESR
HEBBERRITMAESESR KHEELRE
AR D (BVBRA RE M & EAM
) -

RZB-_WNFE+-_A=+—0 KE£E%E
B HE42,431,0008 L (Z B - =4
3,740,000 7T) c ALt AEBER T =Y
F+ZA=+—BHEAEBBLEAZ (=
E-=F EEABLEAT)-

HE-_ZT-_OFR_ZFT=-=ZF+=ZA
T+ —HLEFE AEEEEEANERZ.
BEREFITEED-

FEBRXBRIREARERR T HIFE
PR FTEY BT AL - H MR E D25% R IR
MARAREE -

AEBGAEERGBPEZEFE LI
FABRFRENEARDERNRE 2R
ERTAEEREAFTFEN—EFAZE
5% ARFREZRK - RN _WF+=
BA=+—H ARFREARKRMH70.50%
—E-Z%:70.50%) °

F—FERASREEERAR —FT_NFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. ¢®TH
(A)  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A SETAEESR

2024
—E-ME

Financial assets: SRMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL UNATEFABRNERERE 1,531,896
Financial assets at FVTOCI AR FEF AE M2 KR
ERMEE 262,000
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ REHK AT ENSBHEE 101,305,133
Financial liabilities: ERIATE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1Z# #5 AT EN SR EE 2,041,104
(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (B) NUAFEFFEMNESRIE
(i)  Financial assets at FVTOCI — Unlisted equity (i) BARAFEFAEMEERZE
investment, at fair value e REE—IEEMRAK
& mATE
The fair value hierarchy is level 3, the following table ANTFEERRE=H TKIR
provided information about how the fair value of financial HEBMAET KA FEFTA
assets at FVTOCI were determined (in particular, the Hth2HUENSRHEENR
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the FE(FINEMERNMGEER
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value i K AN BB ) - A RIBIE AT
measurements based on degree to which the inputs to the B ENE AHEN ] HZRE
fair value measurements were observable. ERETAFEFENATEE

BKFEER -

31 December

2024

k- o -3

+=A=+-8

HK$

&
Unlisted equity 262,000  Net assets value Discount rate of 20.4%  The higher the discount  If discount rate increase/

investment adjusted for lack (2023: 20.5%) for rate, the lower the decrease by 5%, loss increase/

of marketability lack of marketability fair value decrease of HK$12,000

(2023: HK$3,000)

FETBARE 262,000 EEFE ki AR pink K ] BEREHE ATE  AHRREN/H05% BB
(Rrzmis RAZHEE04% HIE 3511,/ 012,000% T
RBMEREE) (ZEZZF:205%) (ZBZ=:3000%7T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. @I A (&
(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (B) NUAFEFFEMNSRIE (£&)

(Cont'd)

There was no transfer between different levels of the fair value HE_T-_NFR-_ZT-_=F+=A
hierarchy during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, =E+—HUEFEE TRAAFEERZ
and there was no change in valuation techniques for the following MY EER - BA T AREE R RS
Group’s financial assets that were measured at fair value on a RIBEFUHREEARNTEFENESH
recurring basis at the end of the reporting period: B E R E R E)

Financial assets at FVTOCI AR FER AR M2 E R
HemEE

Financial assets at FVTPL AAFER AR
SRERE

Financial assets at FVTOCI AAFER A M2 E s

HEmEE - - 262,000
Financial assets at FVTPL AAFEFABRE

CRERE 1,531,896 - /

1,531,896 - 262,000

E—FHAEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7255

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ-_NF+-A=+—HIFE

28. WM T H (#&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
(Cont’d)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value based

on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were as follows:

(B)

35 IRV 5T (continued #0)

AR FEAENERTA (&

ERBEATHERBAZRE (E=R)
NAFEFENSHTAZEERMT

At 1 January 2023 WZZ_=%—H—H 2,470,000
Change in fair value in other comprehensive expense T AHMEEHASZH A FEES) (2,208,000)
At 31 December 2023 RZZB-_=%+-HA=+—~8 262,000
Change in fair value in other comprehensive income AAHMEEREHATEES 648,000
At 31 December 2024 R-ZFE-_W&F+-_A=+—H 910,000
(C) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C) ZmEMREEBEMEE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEBKEEDEESES R

price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2023: 10% higher/
lower), loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase by nil
(2023: decrease/increase by HK$153,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to loans and interests receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

Loans and interests receivables

The management expected the ECL of loans and interests
receivables based on historical credit loss experience of the
customers as well as the fair value of the collaterals pledged by
the customers to the loans receivables. Based on assessment by
the management, the loss given default is from 4% to 100%
(2023: 25% to 100%).

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers. The Group considers all
loans and interests receivables (except for unsecured loans with
small loan amount) as doubtful if, on an individual assessment
by way of discounted cash flow, the repayment of principal and/
or interest has been overdue and may not be recoverable and the
fair value of the collateral, in case of secured loans, may not be
able to fully settle the amount of the outstanding principal and/
or interest. Such loans receivables would be considered as loss
immediately if the collection of the principal and/or interest in full
is improbable. For unsecured loans with small loan amount, the
Group considers the loans receivables as loss immediately if the
repayment of principal and/or interest has been overdue and the
collection of the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.

HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—HLFE

28. 2T H (&)

(€)

TREAREEIRNBEK (&

=B R KR E G

FERBEARBEEFHERESD
BEEMERAKEELFTBBENE
- AEBENEERREIZRAEK
EREFE - R R H At R W FRIE A
FSRAT#E B - NG B0 A A K
AR EMEREERE AR EER
EREEAENERERR -

JEWE L T2

EEERBEEFBAMNECEEBIELS
LEBFHEREFEEMNAFE
G EREREFENEREEES
B-REEEEMNFTG BHBAE
NF4%ZE100% (ZFB - =4 :25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

©

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans and interests receivables (Cont'd)

The following table provided information about the exposure to
credit risk for loans and interests receivables using the Group's
credit rating system:

28. W I H (&)

©C cHEAREEEREBE (&)

EERRMBENG (&)
EREFRFIE ()

TRIBGEAAEEEETFRRLS
e A SR LB B BB AR

2024
—B-lE

Average

loss rate

EHEsEE
Performing B4 73% 2,113,720 14% 21,211,868
Doubtful xR 77% 19,664,875 74% 291,590,596
Loss &8 99% 635,223,371 100% 364,239,566
657,001,966 677,042,030

The expected loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
customers is updated.

The following table provided information about the analysis of
movement in ECL on individual and collective assessment for loans
receivables excluding accrued interest receivables:

EHBEEDREESAERFHN
MESBREORMGER IRHBAN
HiB % MRS ) B A4S B AT IR 1
ARHEHBE - EEEEHRT DA
AERE GRS EEPOEEER -

TREHRBEHMLERER (T EEE
Wt A B B R R E
HEEBBRNEFETOMNER:

ECL allowances for loans receivables:

R ERBREEBRRE:

1 January —A—A 578,294,738 461,500,168
ECL on individual assessment B AN TESREEEE 61,173,972 130,433,070
ECL on collective assessment SRTEMEREEEE (68,207,703) 6,845,751
Reversal of ECL on individual B AHEMTEREEBERD

assessment (110,787) (209,999)
Written-offs i (19,549,279) (20,274,252)
31 December +=—A=+—8 551,600,941 578,294,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans and interests receivables (Cont'd)

(a)

The following table showed the movement in gross fixed-
rate loans receivables excluding accrued interest receivable:

HE-_ZT-_NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. 2T A (&

TREAREEERMBE (&)

EERR &R ERE (&)
EREFRFE (%)

(@) TRIIREYGEBEFERE (T
BiERSER RIS MED:

Stage 2
gl

HKS$
&

Gross loans receivables el SR aE
At 1 January 2023 W-ZE-=%—-f—-H 11,986,033 97,121,961 476,197,124 585,305,118
New loans/financing originated BREMFES/ BE 27,027,000 - - 27,027,000
Loans repaid during the year ENEEENER

(other than write-offs) (Hhsmah) (10,849,814) (97) (267,350) (11,117,261)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1)  BHZT-—EABHESFHE

(F—KR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZHEENED

credit-impaired (Stage 2) PHEHREERR (B2ER) 2,500,000) 2,500,000 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEZREREN

credit-impaired (Stage 3) SHEREEERE (B2RR) (3,590,651) (13,783,605) 17,374,256 -
Total transfer between stages Y ook bt (6,090,651) (11,283,605) 17,374,256 -
Write-offs iz (1,519,840) (50,084) (18,704,328) (20,274,252)
At 31 December 2023 and RIBZ=F+ZA=+-BR

1 January 2024 “Z-RE-A-A 20,552,728 85,788,175 474,599,702 580,940,605
New loansffinancing originated BERATER/RE 66,000 - 100,000 166,000
Loans repaid during the year FNERENER

(other than write-offs) (H 5 5M) (465,035) - (2,887,571) (3,352,606)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1)  EEE+_EAAESEEEE

(5-KR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not BRZFEERNED

credit-impaired (Stage 2) FHEHEERR (B2ER) (18,000,000) 18,000,000 = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAZEEREN

credit-impaired (Stage 3) FHBHEEERE (E2RB) - (85,288,175) 85,288,175 -
Total transfer between stages Y il bt (18,000,000) (67,288,175) 85,288,175 -
Write-offs i (102,154) (500,000) (17,364,646) (17,966,800)
At 31 December 2024 RIB-MFE+-A=1+-H 2,051,539 18,000,000 539,735,660 559,787,199

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE T -_WNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. €M T H (#&)
(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C cRERETEBZREE(£&)
(Cont'd)
Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d) EERBRMRENS (Z)
Loans and interests receivables (Cont'd) JEWEFRFIE (&)
(b)  An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances (by HEEHREEGBERENE
is as follows: DWW

Loan receivables FERER
ECL allowance BHGERERER
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-F—-H 677,519 15,064,058 445,758,591 461,500,168
New loans/financing originated BERNNESN/BE 5,767,213 - - 5,767,213
Loans repaid during the year FEREERHER
(other than write-offs) (W) (181,828) (22) (222,479) (404,325)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERET-ERER
BEBE(E-KR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENZ RS
credit-impaired (Stage 2) EEEE (E2KR) (1,312,193) 1,312,193 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRER gmﬁﬁ'@ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬂ
credit-impaired (Stage 3) BEBE(£=KR) (3,590,651) - 3,590,651 -
Total transfer between stages % {BeENEREES (4,902,844) 1,312,193 3,590,651 -
Movements due to changes in credit risk EREHERNED 1,748,944 29,660,781 99,891,884 131,301,609
Write-offs Wfﬁ (105,150) (8,805) (19,755,972) (19,869,927)
At 31 December 2023 and W-E-=Z%+-A=+-BK
1 January 2024 “E-mE-A-H 3,003,854 46,028,205 529,262,679 578,294,738
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) R+ _AAREY
EEBE (E-KR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BRETEE ,\/@HEE’]?EWE%@
credit-impaired (Stage 2) BEBE (E-KR) (3,003,854) 3,003,854 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRELS ﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
credit-impaired (Stage 3) EEER(E=KR) - (45,980,886) 45,980,886 _
Total transfer between stages ZRBEANERAT (3,003,854) (42,977,032) 45,980,886 -
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) ﬁE 2 (BR)FEBE 1,525,708 10,809,259 (19,368,698) (7,033,731)
Write-offs 6 - (142,973) (19,517,093) (19,660,066)
At 31 December 2024 W-E-ME+-A=+-H 1,525,708 13,717,459 536,357,774 551,600,941
Interest receivables FErF &
At 1 January 2024 RZEZME-A-A - - 2,160,000 2,160,000
Transfer to 12-month ECL (stage 1) BRET_AAEBESEE
(B—&8) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit- ERTACENENE SRS
impaired (stage 2) EEBE(E-KR) - = = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit- BRELT WEE’J%E@TEHH
impaired (stage 3) ﬁfﬁl&ﬁ,\ (E=RK&) - - = =
Total transfer between stages XE& ZFEEIE’\J@;%@%Q - - - -
Impairment losses recognised BRAEERE 17,234 1,482,897 89,447,376 90,947,507
At 31 December 2024 WZ2-WE+=-A=+-H 17,234 1,482,897 91,607,376 93,107,507
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, certain borrowers
failed to settle the loan principal and interests which constituted
a default event. Accordingly, ECL is changed to be measured
by lifetime ECL. The principal amount and the corresponding
ECL of HK$18,000,000 and HK$3,003,854, respectively, (2023:
HK$2,500,000 and HK$1,312,193, respectively) were then
reclassified from stage 1 to stage 2.

In addition, certain loans receivables were defaulted by the
borrowers for more than 180 days. In the opinion of the
directors, these loans receivables were credit-impaired. The
principal amount and the corresponding ECL of HK$85,288,175
and HK$45,980,886, respectively, (2023: HK$17,374,256 and
HK$3,590,651, respectively) were then reclassified from stages 1
and 2 to stage 3.

Concentration of credit risk

Secured loans made up to approximately 0% (2023: approximately
11%) of the total gross loans receivables as at 31 December 2024.
Such collaterals comprised unlisted equity securities and luxury
goods pledged against the balances. As at 31 December 2023,
the fair value of properties collateralised for the second mortgage
loans before discounting credit protections available to the first
mortgagees amounted to Nil. The fair value/net asset value of
other collaterals which mainly include unlisted equity securities
and luxury goods amounted to approximately HK$88.40 million.

At 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of secured loans
collateralised with assets other than property is HK$130,236,317.
Among these loans, an amount of HK$88,403,000 is collateralised,
leaving a net amount of HK$42,467,000 uncollateralised. A total
expected credit loss of HK$101,256,147 has been provided,
representing 77% of the gross amount of the loan balance.

HE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—HLFE

28. 2T H (&)

©

TREAREEBRENBEK (&)

EERR R ER S (&)

HE_Z-_WWF+=-_A=+—HL
FE BETERAAREEEERLR
S MEFMBKEL AL BEE
EEBNANCHEBEEEBEM
B A LABESREEBEES A
18,000,0007% Jt % 3,003,854/8 7t (—
T =% :9 542,500,000 7T &
1,312,193 L) lEE B &E —PREREH

DEEFE MR-

N ERABERETERERE
HBiBI1BOK-BEERE ZEEKE
HRELBEERE A< KB@E
HiZE BB H 585,288,175 L &
45,980,886 B L (—ZE - =% : D5l A
17,374,256 7T }3,590,6517% 7T ) B8
BHE-MEME_RBREBETHHIER
FE=MER-

1= B/R i 5

R-T-_mE+-_A=+—H0 FiE
HERGEBEERBRENO% (=T
ZEF %) AEEERRRER
BEREREFRAELTRAZFSRRE
Fm - R_T_NF+=-_A=+—H"
RITBRBANE —FIZANERARE
RMEZRRZBERNMERTFRAF
BEHNAST - HMERR (EERE
FEMBRABESFREER) ORAFES
& EEF{E4988,400,000/8 7T °

RZBZ=F+ZA=+—H " U®
EUNNEERBEANBEFER
K IR E1E A130,236,3178 L %%
B E P &% 588,403,000/ T A
B IR - B K F 542,467,000 T
AEEF - CREHEEBIELE
101,256,147%8 7L ({5 B X 4 #4218 58
77% ) VERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& 3R 22 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2024

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there is no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance is recognised.

Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The directors are responsible to ensure the
Group maintains sufficient capital funding and credit lines to meet
liquidity requirements. This is achieved by projecting cash flows on
a regular basis. The accounts department of the Group monitors
and reports the funding needs to management.

The following table showed the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities, which were based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024

BE-ZFT_QNF+-A=+—"HILFE

28. 2T H (&)

(€)

TREREEERNEE (F)

EERR MR ERE (&)
B b fEW AR IKE

HEMERRERZETMS EEE
BIEATEETDH BTECRHRUKLE
EEREEBRIFOAEMLEAERD
EENEMEER 8 H A E R RIE R
&2 & & 8] 4[] 1 2 17 5E B E BT 44 o
EEERA ZSHENEERRS
MERRURY MAEE LA BAE
EERET—EABEREESEBIR
BE-BE_T_MNEFR-_T_=F
F+Z A=+ —BIEFE AEEFTH
HEmERFIERZSHEREESE
WAEKX - B UL R RE IS -

RITAERS

AEBRRTESRHELENEERR
AR REZHFHAEERERRF
FRBLETSEEIRAEERTD
RITLSBREE AEERREEZ
EERRER-

mEBE T ER

MBESREBRIERNEEREETEE
HNREENRR AEEE B
FRRS MEATRARARRES
MESARKE CREBNTRAE
MEBENENARBESHR KM
ERERBDECRER EFAAEER
AEEERARNEAREREER
ERENRBESRTR ILRTEE
HEAREREMER -AEENS
ARERECREUNNEREER-

TRINRAEEFTESRBER R
SHRONBTEOIEBER TR
BaNARRRERE (REEAS
HMEL (WBEFBHFE)RIBRS
HARMBITNEFEON SRR
REBANTN&TRHAMSL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

28. W I H (&)

©)

TRERERERBRREEK (&)

Liquidity Risk (Cont'd) REBERRR (&)
More than

Weighted On demand 1 year but Total
Average or less than  not exceeding  undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1 year 2 years cash flows amount

REXE SR-F KT
ik SEES PR-£ [ETRERE HERESH REE

HKS HKS HKS
Accruals and other payables JEHERAREMENTE - 671,048 - 671,048 671,048
Lease liabilties BERR 5.54% 75,000 - 75,000 74,144
Bond payable EREH 8.50% 556,293 - 556,293 512,712
1,302,341 = 1,302,341 1,257,904

Accruals and other payables T ERREMERNTE - 824,681 - 824,681 824,681
Lease liabilities RERE 5.54% 225,000 - 225,000 216,423
Bond payable R ES 8.50% 1,063,808 - 1,063,808 1,000,000

2,113,489 - 2,113,489 2,041,104

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from lease liabilities, bond payable, interest-bearing loans
receivables, bank and cash balances. Loans receivables and bank
and cash balances at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate
profile as monitored by the management of the Group is set out
below.

R %
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BoAEEMAEAREIERARE
BT % IR B B R R
BARRS RSB RIHFEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. €T H (&
(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C cEEREEEEREE (&)

(Cont'd)
Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd) FEmb (&)
Interest Rate Profile: FIEBER -
The following table, as reported to the management of the TREIMAEEERBEZ®R BR
Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s deposits/ AEE MRS I8 R FI & B AR
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: IR

Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): BEFHZEHER  (EHK) :

Loans and interests receivables FEU B R & FE
(gross carrying amounts) (FREEERE) 677,042,030
Bond payable FERIE (1,000,000)
676,042,030

Variable rate deposits: FEIFIEFER:
Bank balances HRATAE R 3,728,159
3,728,159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 5% %R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group's bank
deposits and loans receivables and payable at floating interest
rates.

Change in basis points

ER2E
2024

—¥-mE

Bank deposits RATR +/-50

Effect on profit after tax
HRHRRBAHTE

2024 2024

k- 1.3

28. $RWT A (&

cREAREREERMBE (&

FRER (&)
REBRFEFETOIRITEFRIAR
JRE s K e B R BURE 0 AT 2 51 40
To

Effect on equity
HiEnne

kol 3

9,958 15,565 9,958 15,565

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's
loss after tax (and accumulated losses) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2023.

ERGRESWER BRMNEEH
ERBERARELE YEERAREN
FREAKEAFAENRRERREAR
SEHEEAFENEEBRNSHTE:
AIREENBREER (REEEBE)
MizaanHoEXBrBEEL
) BV B 2 ) o k7R 5% B 70 T o B R
BRFBNERENTETAMELNR
ERMNERRT S HAEBERBR
A (R RIEER) RARE #m E Al
HRADOFEREAN LY T
SRAXIRANEEL B ETMHE-
DITIRE T~ = FRRMEEETT -

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 75 2R 28 MY 5 continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE T -_WNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 29.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METDFELERABEZHER

TRENAEHBETYAELEEEZE
PAE BERASRIRGEY -HEFTY
FEANBEARSRECKAERKR
eREBERNEAEEGARENERDHE
REBERINRERENEE-

The table below showing the detail changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities were those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Bond
[EVELIL

FE £ 5 35

Lease
liabilities

HEARK

At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%F—H—H - 662,804 662,804
Proceeds from financing activities BB EE TS IE 1,000,000 272,167 1,272,167
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBEMNK - (718,548) (718,548)
Interest paid [EENEUESS (21,425) (110,049) (131,474)
Interest expenses FBEFAX 38,425 110,049 148,474
Transfer to accruals and FET R I Ho A FE (T sRIBEE

other payables (17,000) - (17,000)
At 31 December 2023 and 75’\\ To=Ft+-A=+—HE

1 January 2024 —E-|&—H—H 1,000,000 216,423 1,216,423
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBENK = (142,279) (142,279)
Payment of bond payables FEEHAR (487,288) - (487,288)
Interest paid EARFE (74,287) (7,721) (82,008)
Interest expenses BBz 79,899 7,721 87,620
Transfer to accruals and FEET B R R ER RIEE

other payables (5,612) - (5,612)
At 31 December 2024 M-E-mE+-A=+—8 512,712 74,144 586,856

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= & 84 %5 3R 2R M 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.BERRS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE TEEFEETEAENHS
GROUP
The remuneration of directors, who comprised the key management ER(PEASEIZEBAB)FANS
personnel of the Group, during the year was as follows: BT

HHEERN (BEFE-

Short term employee benefits including

salaries, paid annual leaves and BHFBRIER)
sick leaves 2,445,000
Post-employment benefits B8 RIKEF 30,000
2,475,000

E—FHAEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 %% 38R 2R MY 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_ZT_NF+_A=+—HILFE

31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. KX RIFEMEB A FIFEE
OF THE COMPANY

RZE-_NFRER_FE-_=F+=-A=+—
B ARREZELHEAEFEZETENHB AR

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

REEEIT

First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands US$19,230,767 100 - Investment holding
RERAEE 19,230,767 7T RELR

First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 - Inactive

E-EREB(PE)ERAR EE 17 gmex

Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$90 100 - Investment holding
ERRREHE 90XTT REER

Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

EXE-BRERRA EERRES (E REER

Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 = Inactive
AERREE 100%7T HEex

First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 - 100 Provision and

arrangement of
credit facilities

E-ERUBERAR B 153,550,000 0 RERTHERRE

Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Inactive
AERREE B fmex

Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 - 100 Investment in securities

SNAEEFERAT i 90,000,000/ 7 EHRE

First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive

F-EREYE (FR)ERAA £ 10,0007 TEEXR

First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Property holding

E-ERBERBERAT A 1B BENE

Note: All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=-+—HIFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. AQTRIBBRREREES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )
(A)  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A ANRQ A AR
2024 2023
—EB-ME —Eo=%
Notes HKS$ HK$
Ft 5 BT BIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R B HIRE 788 788
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE Ee &
other receivables A fE U R TE 1,128,297 1,280,619
Due from subsidiaries FE W BB R B SR IR 10,321,846 106,706,144
Bank and cash balances RITRBREH 48,268 1,137,230
Total current assets MEEELE 11,498,411 109,123,993
Current liabilities REBE
Accruals JEETE R 590,000 -
Due to subsidiaries JE BT B A R 3R B 1,178,198 370,298
Total current liabilities mE BB 1,768,198 370,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 9,730,213 108,753,695
NET ASSETS HEZE 9,731,001 108,754,483
Capital and Reserves BXRGEE
Share capital & A 25 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves s 32(B) (62,844,999) 36,178,483
TOTAL EQUITY HSBE 9,731,001 108,754,483
(B) MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVE (B) AARHEHEED
Share Capital  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses
[t ita (8 EX R BB AitlE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—F—H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (509,887,502) 198,514,445
Loss for the year FRER - = - (162,335,962) (162,335,962)
At31December 2023 ~ R=Z-=#+-fA=+-H 356,661,862 138279615 213460470 (672,223464) 36,178,483
Loss for the year FRNEE - - - (99,023,482)  (99,023,482)
At 31 December 2024 WRZE-WE+-H=+—-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (771,246,946)  (62,844,999)

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures were revised to conform with current year
presentation.

33. kL REF

ETUHBRAFEREANTAAFENE
BT e

F-EAEREEARAF —ZT_MFEFH



156

Financial Summary (4 #¥ @B &

FINANCIAL RESULTS B ¥EE

Revenue, other income and Wz E A K&

other gain and loss Hofh g 25 R B 1R 1,853,859 21,872,511 60,998,435 36,865,540
Loss before tax B RIE 1R (152,934,687)  (182,684,775)  (26,622,536)  (358,389,707)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfigke,/ (BX) (18,628) 203,286 (4,914,434) (9,221,821)
Loss for the year ENEE (152,953,315)  (182,481,489)  (31,536,970) (367,611,528)

Loss and total comprehensive LA F AT EEEIER

expense attribute to: 2EMXEE:
Owners of the Company NNSIEZYEUN (155,161,315)  (180,229,489)  (32,110,970) (367,611,528)
Non-controlling interests IR ER - - - -
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BERER
2024
“E-ME
HK$
BT
Total assets BELE 126,482,681 281,508,203 472,127,890 508,516,669
Total liabilities aELE (2,041,104) (1,905,311)  (12,295,509)  (16,573,318)

124,441,577 279,602,892 459,832,381 491,943,351

Equity attributable to owners — AARIHEH AEIHEZ
of the Company 124,441,577 279,602,892 459,832,381 491,943,351

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2024
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